
 
 

Ridgway Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, July 13, 2022 
 

 
Pursuant to the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy, 

the meeting will be conducted both in person and via a virtual meeting portal. Members of 
the public may attend in person at the Community Center, located at 201 N. Railroad Street, 

Ridgway, Colorado 81432, or virtually using the meeting information below. 
 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84313771400?pwd=uGgLDFhV5ZI1u97kC1Uenh3ZCxy0KM.1  

Meeting ID: 843 1377 1400 
Passcode: 875312 

Dial by your location 
        +1 346 248 7799 US  
        +1 253 215 8782 US 

 
5:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL Councilors Polly Enochs, Kevin Grambley, Beth Lakin, Terry Schuyler, JT Thomas, 

Mayor Pro Tem Russ Meyer and Mayor John Clark   
 
ADDITIONS & DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
ADOPTION OF CONSENT CALENDAR   All matters listed under the consent calendar are 
considered to be routine by the Town Council and enacted by one motion.  The Council has 
received and considered reports and recommendations prior to assigning consent calendar 
designations.  Copies of the reports are on file in the Town Clerk’s Office and are available to the 
public.  There will be no separate discussion on these items.  If discussion is requested, that item 
will be removed from the consent calendar and considered separately. 
 
1.    Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 8, 2022. 
 
2.    Register of Demands for July 2022. 
 
3.    Renewal of restaurant liquor license with optional premises for Chipeta Sun Lodge. 
 
4.    Renewal of fermented malt beverage liquor license for Ridgway Shell. 
 
5.    Renewal of fermented malt beverage liquor license for Ridgway Conoco.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS   Established time for the public to address the Council regarding any item 
not otherwise listed on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person. 
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per 
person; discussion of each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
6.    Presentation of the Ouray & San Miguel County Regional Climate Action Plan - Emma 

Gerona, EcoAction Partners. 
 
7.    Questions regarding eminent domain and condemnation of property - Kuno Vollenweider.  
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84313771400?pwd=uGgLDFhV5ZI1u97kC1Uenh3ZCxy0KM.1


Town Council Agenda 
July 13, 2022 
Page 2 

 
 

POLICY MATTERS Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of 
each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
8.    Resolution No. 22-07 supporting the Multimodal Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund 

Grant Application and Match Commitment for the Creation of a Regional Transportation 
Service between the City of Montrose, Town of Ridgway and City of Ouray - Town Manager.  

 
9.    Discussion and direction regarding HB22-1117 Use of Local Lodging Taxes - Town Manager.  
 
10.  Confirmation or amendment of Emergency Restrictions, promulgated by the Town Manager, 

on burning and fires within the Town of Ridgway - Town Manager.  
 
11.  Ratification of letter of support for Ouray Ice Park’s funding request to the Colorado Outdoor 

Recreation Industry Office - Mayor Clark.  
 
12.  Consideration of authorizing Mayor Clark to sign a letter of support for the Gunnison Outdoor 

Resources Protection Act - Town Manager. 
 
13.  Discussion regarding the setting of a Special Council Meeting - Town Manager. 
 
WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS   Written reports may be provided for informational purposes 
prior to the meeting updating Council on various matters that may or may not warrant discussion 
and action. 
 
14.  Proposed schedule for preparation of the 2023 Fiscal Year Budget. 
 
15.  Town Manager’s Report - Town Manager. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION The Town Council will enter into a closed session pursuant to 1) Colorado 
Revised Statutes 24-6-402(4)(b) for the purpose of receiving legal advice and Colorado Revised 
Statutes 24-6-402(4)(e) for determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to 
negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and instructing negotiators regarding Wolf Cattle 
Company property, and 2) Colorado Revised Statutes 24-6-402(4)(f) for discussion of a personnel 
matter concerning the Town Manager’s annual performance evaluation. 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   Informational verbal reports from Councilors pertaining to the 
following committees, commissions and organizations: 
 
Committees & Commissions: 
Ridgway Planning Commission - Councilor Meyer and Mayor Clark 
Ridgway Parks, Trails & Open Space Committee - Councilor Enochs 
Ridgway Creative District Creative Advocacy Team - Councilor Grambley 
Ridgway Scholarship Committee - Councilor Lakin and Mayor Clark 
 
Board Appointments: 
Ouray County Weed Board - Councilor Lakin; alternate - Town Engineer 
Ouray County Joint Planning Board - Councilor Meyer, citizens Rod Fitzhugh & Tom McKenney; 

alternate - Councilor Schuyler 
Sneffels Energy Board - Councilor Thomas and Town Manager; alternate - Mayor Clark 
Region 10 Board - Mayor Clark 
WestCO Dispatch Board - Town Marshal; alternate - Town Manager 
Gunnison Valley Transportation Planning Region - Town Manager 



Town Council Agenda 
July 13, 2022 
Page 3 

 
 

Ouray County Transit Committee - Town Manager 
Ouray County Water Users Association - Councilor Meyer; alternate Councilor Thomas 
Water and Land Committee for the Uncompahgre Valley - Councilor Meyer; alternate - Town 

Manager 
Colorado Communities for Climate Action - Councilor Lakin; alternate - Town Manager 
Colorado Municipal League Policy Committee - Town Manager 
 
Liaisons: 
Chamber of Commerce - Councilmember Lakin 
Communities That Care Coalition - Mayor Clark 
Ouray County Fairgrounds - Councilor Schuyler 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Deadline for agenda items for next regular meeting, Wednesday, August 10, 2022 at 4:00 p.m., 
Town Clerk’s Office, 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado. 



 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
 



 
RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL  

 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

 
JUNE 8, 2022 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was held both in person and via a virtual meeting portal, Zoom Meeting, pursuant to 
the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy.  
 
The Mayor Pro Tem called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  In attendance Councilors Enochs, 
Grambley, Schuyler, Thomas and Mayor Pro Tem Meyer. Councilor Lakin and Mayor Clark were 
absent.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1.    Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 11, 2022. 
 
2.    Register of Demands for June 2022. 
 
3.    Renewal of restaurant liquor license for El Agave Azul. 
 
4.    Renewal of brew pub liquor license for Colorado Boy Brewing Company.  
 
5.    Renewal of liquor store license for Ridgway Liquors.  
 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor Schuyler, seconded by Councilmember Grambley and unanimously 
carried by a roll call vote to approve the consent agenda. 
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS    
 
 6.   Update on Ridgway Elementary School Renovation Project 
 

Susan Lacy and Heidi Hanssen from Ridgway School District presented plans for renovation 
of the elementary school.  The original building was constructed for all grades, and in 2006 a 
secondary facility for middle and high school students was opened.  There are two existing 
buildings on the site, one constructed in 1972 and the other in 1996.  Construction will begin 
the end of summer and should be completed in August of 2023.   
 
There were questions from the Council and the audience.  
 
Ms. Lacy noted there will be no impacts from the construction to Town streets.  

 
7.    Proclamation declaring June as Immigrant Heritage Month  
 

Robyn Cascade presented and read a proclamation declaring June 2022 as Immigrant 
Heritage Month, and introduced Margaret Emerson who spoke regarding her families 
experiences immigrating to the US after seeking political asylum.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Enochs moved to approve declaring June as Immigrant Heritage Month in Ridgway, 
seconded by Councilor Schuyler the motion carried unanimously.  



Town Council Minutes 
June 8, 2022 
Page 2 
 

 
 
8.    Request to use Hartwell Park for the second annual Ouray County Pride Celebration  
 

Tera Wick, volunteer with Voyager Youth Program, presented a request to use Hartwell Park 
for the second consecutive year to hold the Ouray County Pride Celebration.  There were 
members of the Pride Committee present who spoke in support of the event. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Schuyler moved to approve the application for special event for the second annual 
Ouray County Pride event.  Councilmember Enochs seconded the motion which carried 
unanimously.  
 
9.    Proclamation supporting the second annual Ouray County Pride Celebration  
 

The Mayor Pro Tem read the proclamation supporting the second annual Ouray County Pride 
Celebration.   

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilmember Grambley moved, with a second by Councilor Enochs to pass the proclamation 
supporting the second annual Ouray County Pride Celebration, and the motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

Members of the audience expressed why they feel it is important to hold a pride event. 
 
10.  Request to use streets and sidewalk rights-of-ways for March for Our Lives event  
 

Vicky Green requested to use pubic sidewalks and possibly streets on June 11th to hold a 
March for Our Lives event under the umbrella of a federal organization of the same name. 
She explained the intent of the rally is to draw awareness to gun violence; and participants 
would assemble in Hartwell Park before positioning themselves along Sherman Street and 
hold signs.  

 
There were questions from the Council. 

 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Schuyler to approve the application for a special event permit 
for the March for Our Lives event.  Councilor Grambley seconded the motion which carried 
unanimously.  
 
11.  Request for relief on past due water charges and share in the cost of repairs to water line  
 

Staff Report from the Town Clerk dated 6-1-22 presenting requests from Patrick and Marti 
O’Leary for relief on past due water charges and costs of repairs for a water line break at the 
Old Firehouse commercial building, 185 North Lena Street. 

 
Ms. O’Leary explained to the Council in November of 2020 after water usage was high, she 
asked the public works department to turn off water to the building, and subsequently 
requested the service be resumed in the spring.  She noted, at that time staff determined 
there was a water leak on the property owners side of the meter.  The area was excavated 
in the summer of 2021 and the leak was “nine inches from the meter box” and she feels it 



Town Council Minutes 
June 8, 2022 
Page 3 
 

was due to “pressure from the sidewalk install in 2018”.  The cost of the repair was $3600 
and she requested the Town share in the cost of the repair, and waive past due amounts on 
water of $1500.  

 
The Town Clerk reported the Council approved issuance of a water leak adjustment in 
November of 2020; and pursuant to Code Section 9-1-2(A), the O’Leary’s were told by staff 
repairs to a leak on the property owners side of a meter is the property owners responsibility.  
The Town Manager noted varying from this regulation would set a precedence, as sharing in 
the cost of private property repairs have not been previously approved.  
 
There were comments and discussion by the Council.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Schuyler and seconded by Councilor Thomas to deny the request for 
compensation for repairs and past due water for Account 3300.1. The motion carried with 
Councilor Grambley voting no.   

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
12.  Transfer of stock holder for Star Saloon tavern liquor license  
 

Staff Report dated 6-3-22 from the Town Clerk presenting an application requesting change 
of corporate structure for the tavern liquor license for Star Saloon LLC. 
 
The Town Clerk reported the premises at 373 Palomino Trail, will continue to hold the trade 
name of Star Saloon, but a change of corporate structure will transfer one hundred percent 
of the stockholder and membership from Adam Dubroff to Benjamin Jackson IV.  She noted 
there are no changes in the license other than how the corporation is being held, and final 
approval must be made by the Colorado Department of Revenue Liquor Enforcement 
Division. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Grambley, second by Councilor Schuyler and unanimously carried to 
approve the change of corporate structure for Star Saloon LLC.   
 
POLICY MATTERS 

 
13.  Presentation of Strategic Master Plan for Ridgway Visitor Center & Heritage Park   
 

Community Initiatives Facilitator Tera Wick presented the Council with an updated master 
plan for Heritage Park and the Visitor Center.  

 
Walker Christianson with DHM Design presented the plan and explained the original master 
plan was prepared in May of 2019 and since this time the railroad train cars and museum 
have been moved from the site, which left the park without a central focus.  In February 2021, 
through funding from Colorado Main Street, DHM Design began preparation of an updated 
site plan and worked with a local committee for ideas.  He presented an overview of the 
proposed new plan to the Council.   

 
Facilitator Wick noted incorporated into the new site plan is inclusion of recognizing the Ute 
heritage. 

 



Town Council Minutes 
June 8, 2022 
Page 4 
 

There were questions and comments from the Council. 
 

Sue Husch and Robyn Cascade spoke from the audience in support of the plan; and a letter 
was read into the record from the Board of the Chamber of Commerce supporting the plan. 

 
There was discussion by the Council. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilmember Schuyler to approve without modifications the updated Heritage Park 
Site Plan for the Strategic Master Plan for Ridgway Visitor Center and Heritage Park; direct staff 
to update the Long Term Implementation Plan and Strategy based on the updated site plan, for 
Council review and consideration; authorize Mayor Clark to sign on behalf of the Council a letter 
to the three Ute Tribal Chairs requesting a consultation relationship to begin the process of 
researching and developing cultural interpretive information and art installations that tell the story 
of Ridgway’s Ute heritage from the perspective of the Ute people, seconded by Councilor 
Grambley, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
14.  Presentation of branding proposal for Ridgway Creative Main Street  
 

The Community Initiatives Facilitator explained the Town has designations for two State 
programs, Creative District and Main Street, and last year the local programs were merged.  
The Town recently received technical assistance from the State Main Street Program to 
provide consultants to work with the committee to “refresh” the branding for the new 
committee name.  She presented the process which was undertaken, and reported the 
committee is recommending the name “Ridgway Fuse, a Colorado Creative and Main Street”.   

 
Sue Husch spoke in support of the proposal. 

 
       There were comments by the Council.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Schuyler, seconded by Council Enochs and approved unanimously to 
approve the new branding system for Ridgway Creative Main Street Program. 
 
15.  Authorization for Mayor to sign letter of support for the Governor Basin Restoration Project  
 

The Town Manager reported the Uncomphagre Water Partnership (UWP) is requesting a 
letter of support for a proposed project to reclaim a tributary into the river from Governor 
Basin, which is impacting water quality due to abandoned mines and acidic waste dumps and 
tailings.  

 
Speaking from UWP Tanya Ishikawa and Scott Williams expressed the need for the 
reclamation project, and presented the names of other local agencies which have written 
letters of support.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Enochs moved to approve the letter as written to support the Governor Basin 
Restoration Project.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Grambley and then carried 
unanimously.  
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
June 8, 2022 
Page 5 
 

 
16.  Revocable Encroachment Permit for use of Town property to install a Post Office drop box  
 

Staff Report from Manager Neill dated 6-3-22 presenting an application for a revocable 
encroachment permit to install a mail drop box on the landscaped island located in the right 
of way, at the intersection of N. Lena and Clinton Streets, across from the US Post Office.  
He noted the purpose for the new drop box would be to afford patrons the ability to drive up 
and drop mail without needing to leave the vehicle.  

 
There were comments by the Council noting the need to paint curbs, sign the area 
accordingly, and provide an area for snow storage. 

 
Speaking from the audience Sue Husch spoke in support of the proposal. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Thomas, seconded by Councilor Schuyler to approve the revocable 
encroachment permit to install a Post Office drop box.  On a call for the vote the motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
17.  Purchase of dissolved oxygen monitoring equipment for Wastewater Treatment Plant  
 

As outlined in a Staff Report dated 6-1-22 the Town Manager explained in 2021 the Town 
committed to the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment to implement a 
sub-surface system and data logging equipment to continuously monitor dissolved oxygen in 
each of the cells at the wastewater treatment plant.  Funds have been budgeted to purchase 
dissolved oxygen monitoring equipment for this important project, he noted, and the amount 
budgeted is below the cost to acquire the equipment.  He stated staff feels the Sewer Fund 
can accommodate the increase, and noted per the Procurement Policy, Council is required 
to approve expenditures over $25,000.    
 

ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilor Thomas to approve the deviation from procurement procedures, waive 
the formal request for bid process for acquisition of equipment, authorize the purchase of a 
dissolved oxygen monitoring system from Mountain Peak Controls in the amount of $31,760 and 
authorize staff to enter into a purchase agreement for said equipment.   Councilmember Enochs 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.  

 
18.  Promulgating volunteer water restrictions 
 

Staff report from the Town Manager dated 6-7-22 presenting the Water Conservation and 
Management Plan adopted in 2018. 
 
Manager Neill suggested implementing voluntary water restrictions pursuant to the water 
conservation plan statement, noting the US Drought Portal has placed Ouray County in 
extreme drought conditions.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Enochs, seconded by Councilor Schuyler to promulgate Stage I Voluntary 
Water Restrictions.   The motion carried unanimously.  
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
June 8, 2022 
Page 6 
 

 
19.  Extend approval of road closure on N. Laura Street for construction of Space to Create project 

 
Manager Neill noted on June 14th the approval to close a portion of N. Laura Street for 
construction of the Space to Create project will expire.  He asked the Council to consider 
extending the closure to facilitate the construction process and safety on the street.  
 
There were comments and discussion by the Council.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Thomas moved to extend to August 11th the street closure, and review possible 
extension at the August 10th meeting, Councilor Schuyler seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously.  
 
MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS 
 
 Manager Neill highlighted some of the items contained in the monthly managers report. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Carpetrends, Inc Alpine-Operating Account

floor cleaner 732PO1 · Supplies - c cntr/t hall -70.20

TOTAL -70.20

SGS Accutest Inc Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -103.06

TOTAL -103.06

Black Hills Energy-Broadband Alpine-Operating Account

783PO1 · Broadband Station -14.84

TOTAL -14.84

Black Hills Energy-PW Building Alpine-Operating Account

742POO · Utilities -11.52
642GO2 · Utilities -11.52
942SOO · Utilities -11.51
942WOO · Utilities -11.51

TOTAL -46.06

Black Hills Energy-Hartwell Park Alpine-Operating Account

742POO · Utilities -39.82

TOTAL -39.82

Black Hills Energy-PW Office Alpine-Operating Account

642GO2 · Utilities -11.19
942SOO · Utilities -11.20
942WOO · Utilities -11.20

TOTAL -33.59

Black Hills Energy-Lift Station Alpine-Operating Account

942SOO · Utilities -27.35

TOTAL -27.35

Black Hills Energy-Town Hall Alpine-Operating Account

742PO1 · Utilities - c cntr/t hall -20.34
842GO3 · Utilities -20.34
542GOO · Utilities -20.34

TOTAL -61.02

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

July 2022

Page 1



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

True Value Alpine-Operating Account

632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -132.03
732POO · Supplies & Materials -227.23
732PO1 · Supplies - c cntr/t hall -145.06
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -154.12
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -150.19

TOTAL -808.63

UNCC Alpine-Operating Account

915WOO · Dues & memberships -26.00
915SOO · Dues & Memberships -26.00

TOTAL -52.00

Verizon Wireless Alpine-Operating Account

741POO · Telephone -56.02
943SOO · Telephone -64.68
943WOO · Telephone -112.82
843GO3 · Telephone -162.72
543GOO · Telephone -91.36
643GO2 · Telephone -56.02
552GOO · GIS Mapping - admin -10.01
952SOO · GIS Mapping - sewer -10.00
952WOO · GIS Mapping - water -50.02
830GO3 · Computer -160.04

TOTAL -773.69

Xerox Financial Services Alpine-Operating Account

Xerox lease - June 2022 948SOO · Office Equipment - Leases -7.63
Xerox lease - June 2022 948WOO · Office Equipment - Leases -15.26
Xerox lease - June 2022 548GOO · Office Equipment - Leases -129.75

TOTAL -152.64

Heidi Grows Up LLC Alpine-Operating Account

666GO2 · Right-of-Way Landscaping -5,185.00

TOTAL -5,185.00

Dana Kepner Company Inc Alpine-Operating Account

battery for handheld 932WOO · Supplies & Materials -787.62

TOTAL -787.62

Pioneer Alpine-Operating Account

mulch 666GO2 · Right-of-Way Landscaping -697.35

TOTAL -697.35

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

July 2022

Page 2



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Pro Velocity Alpine-Operating Account

July 2022 556GOO · IT Services -626.34
July 2022 615GO2 · IT Services -626.33
July 2022 729POO · IT -626.33
July 2022 820GO3 · IT Services -631.34
July 2022 917WOO · IT Services -600.83
July 2022 917SOO · IT Services -595.83
July 2022 530GOO · Computer -60.00
July 2022 630GO2 · Computer -60.00
July 2022 730POO · Computer -60.00
July 2022 830GO3 · Computer -60.00
July 2022 930WOO · Computer -60.00
July 2022 930SOO · Computer -60.00

TOTAL -4,067.00

Bruin Waste Management Alpine-Operating Account

second pick-up - June 2022 742POO · Utilities -240.19

TOTAL -240.19

Montrose Water Factory, LLC Alpine-Operating Account

632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -13.25
732POO · Supplies & Materials -13.25
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -13.25
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -13.25

TOTAL -53.00

Dahl of Montrose Alpine-Operating Account

urinal repair parts 731PO1 · Maint & Repairs - c cntr/t hall -32.38
urinal repair parts 731PO1 · Maint & Repairs - c cntr/t hall -181.74

TOTAL -214.12

Grand Junction Pipe & Supply ... Alpine-Operating Account

irrigation parts 732POO · Supplies & Materials -769.56

TOTAL -769.56

ADAPCO Alpine-Operating Account

vectobac 768POO · Mosquito Control -994.60

TOTAL -994.60

City of Grand Junction Alpine-Operating Account

918SOO · Testing & Permits - sewer -612.00

TOTAL -612.00

Pureline Treatment Systems Alpine-Operating Account

July 2022 989WOO · Plant Expenses - water -1,650.00

TOTAL -1,650.00

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

July 2022

Page 3



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

The Paper Clip LLC Alpine-Operating Account

541GOO · Office Supplies -62.25
941WOO · Office Supplies -62.24
941SOO · Office Supplies -62.24

TOTAL -186.73

Ouray County Road & Bridge Alpine-Operating Account

5/26/22-6/22/22 660GO2 · Gas & Oil -380.53
5/26/22-6/22/22 760POO · Gas & Oil -661.99
5/26/22-6/22/22 960WOO · Gas & Oil -344.98
5/26/22-6/22/22 960SOO · Gas & Oil -868.53
5/26/22-6/22/22 860GO3 · Gas & Oil -1,000.04

TOTAL -3,256.07

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

July 2022

Page 4



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
 



 

 Town of Ridgway Regional Climate Action Plan Work Session  

 

Memo  

To: Ridgway Town Council 

From: Emma Gerona, Executive Director, EcoAction Partners  

Date: July 13th, 2022  

Re: Regional Climate Action Plan Implementation Work Session 

 

The Sneffels Energy Board facilitated by EcoAction Partners is excited to present the completed 

update to our regional Climate Action Plan. The plan is an update from the original 2010 regional 

Sustainability Action Plan. It covers 8 sectors and will act as a working roadmap towards 

accomplishing regional sustainability goals in hopes of balancing short-term priorities and long-

term planning. The plan presents a strategic framework for measuring and reducing greenhouse 

gas emissions and supporting collaborative climate actions and sustainability efforts.  

 

The plan is meant to be a high-level regional guiding document. It was created with input from 

and actions for a diverse group of stakeholders across the region. No action or objective in the plan 

is the sole responsibility of any one government or entity, rather the plan supports regional 

collaboration on climate initiatives and engagement of our entire regional community. EcoAction 

Partners is working with each stakeholder that has been identified as playing a role in 

implementing CAP objectives to identify specific actionable items that will guide us toward 

achieving our larger goals. The commitment to and prioritization of these specific actions will help 

us track our movement towards our GHG reduction goals.  

 

While reviewing the CAP document, please note the goal of this work session is to identify 

mutually beneficial areas of support to further the Town’s climate action goals in relation to the 

regional scope of work. As you read through the plan, please consider which actions are applicable 

to and a priority for the Ridgway government and community, and where you see opportunities 

for regional collaboration. Our key focus at this point in the planning process is implementation. 

We hope to successfully track and measure progress towards our shared goals and recognize that 

to do so, community engagement and collaboration are key!  

 

Success in reaching our GHG emission reduction goals will come from the important work of each 

of you. In the past our community has demonstrated the power that local action can have by setting 

an example of proactive and collaborative climate actions. We look forward to continuing this 

work and protecting the natural environment that makes our home so special.  

 

Further information on the Climate Action Plan, supporting documents, a community input survey 

and more can all be found on our website at ecoactionpartners.org/cap. The Climate Action Plan 

is included below for your convenience. 



S A N  M I G U E L  &  O U R AY  C O U N T Y  

Regional Climate Action Plan 

Presented by Sneffels Energy Board
Prepared by EcoAction Partners 



Call to Action

San Miguel and Ouray County Residents and Visitors:
We are excited to present our regional collaborative Climate Action Plan in an effort to
continue our regions’ shared climate leadership. This document is meant to be a working
roadmap to advance projects and programming that allow our communities to pursue
economic, environmental, and socially beneficial solutions to reducing our greenhouse gas
emissions.
Now more than ever we are experiencing the adverse effects of climate change on our
community. Rising temperatures, a reduced snowpack, and an increased number of wildfires
have all demonstrated the unprecedented risk that we are facing. This document is meant to
be owned by the community. Success will come from the work of each of you. We all need to
step up and demonstrate leadership by protecting the natural environment that makes our
home so special.
In adopting this document, our region is re-establishing our commitment to igniting change
through climate action and collaboration. We will champion local, state and federal policies
that prioritize the health of our environment. We will create more inclusive planning and
programming through increased community empowerment and engagement. We will work with
SMPA as they move towards their goal of 80% renewable energy by 2030. We will
demonstrate the power that local action can have on a broad scale by setting an example of
collaborative and proactive climate actions. We recognize that local action can spark change
and have a global impact.
This plan lays out our commitment to taking action across all greenhouse gas emissions
sectors applicable to our region: community engagement and policy, energy supply, building
energy use, transportation and aviation, waste, food, water, and land use. We are calling on
you to take action with us.

Sneffels Energy Board,
Facilitated by EcoAction Partners 

2

Introduction



Key Acronyms and Partners 4

Executive Summary 5

Our Regional GHG Inventory 13

Introduction to the Regional CAP 21

Sector: Community Engagement & Policy 23

Sector: Energy Supply 25

Sector: Building Energy Use 29

3

Table of Contents

Sector: Transportation & Aviation 39

Sector: Waste + Material Use 45

Sector: Food 50

Sector: Water 52

Sector: Land 56

Acknowledgements 61

Appendix 62



Partners:

BHE: Black Hills Energy 

EAP: EcoAction Partners 

ICLEI: ICLEI Local Governments for Sustainability

MTJ: Montrose Regional Airport

OC: Ouray County

PCI: Pinhead Climate Institute

SEB: Sneffels Energy Board

SMC: San Miguel County 

SMA: Sheep Mountain Alliance 

SMART: San Miguel Authority for Regional 
Transportation

SMPA: San Miguel Power Association 

TEX: Telluride Regional Airport

TI: Telluride Institute 

TMV: Town of Mountain Village 

Tri-State: Tri-State Generation &Transmission

WCU: Western Colorado University 

WPL: Wilkinson Public Library

Commissions, Committees & Boards: 

ACCO: Association of Climate Change Officers

AQCC: Air Quality Control Commission

CAST: Colorado Association of Ski Town

CC4CA: Colorado Communities for Climate Action

OSRC: Ophir Self Reliance Committee

OWC: Ophir Water Commission

RMCO: Rocky Mountain Climate Organization

Programs: 

CARE: Colorado Affordable Residential Energy 
Program 

PES: Payment for Ecosystem Services

REMP: Renewable Energy Mitigation Program

TEMP: Telluride  Energy Mitigation Program 

Other: 

CAP: Climate Action Plan

CSA: Community Supported Agriculture 

CSG: Community Solar Generation

DSM: Demand Side Management 

EVs: Electric Vehicles

GHG: Greenhouse Gas

GPC: Global Protocol for Community-Scale 
Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventories, 12-8-2014

IQ: Income Qualified 

kWh: Kilowatt-Hour

LED: Light Emitting Diode 

mtCO2e: Metric Tons of Carbon Dioxide Equivalent 

OHV: Off Highway Vehicle 

PUC: Public Utilities Commission

PV:  Photovoltaic Solar

RECs: Renewable Energy Credits

RV: Recreational Vehicle 

SAF: Sustainable Aviation Fuel

WWTP: Wastewater Treatment Plant

4

Introduction
Key Acronyms and 

Partners



Executive Summary

The Ouray and San Miguel County Regional Climate Action Plan was completed in 2021 and sets the stage for
the next decade of climate action across our region. Successful implementation of the following 21 objectives
and supporting actions will help our community continue to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions from our
2010 GHG emissions baseline, while we continue to see economic and population growth. We are looking ahead
to goals of a 50% reduction in our GHG emissions by 2030 and a 90% reduction by 2050.

This plan will act as a roadmap for continued collaborative regional actions across the eight sectors of:
Community Engagement & Policy, Energy Supply, Buildings, Transportation, Waste, Food, Water, and Land

This plan is a regional community working document. Though specific entities, governments, organizations and
individuals might take the lead on certain actions, success will take deliberate partnership across our entire region. No
one organization, department, or government is solely responsible for the execution of the actions listed in this CAP. This
document will help guide intentional actions over the next 3-, 5-, and 10- years as we move towards a more sustainable
future.

5

Executive Summary

Energy Supply Buildings Transportation Waste Food Water LandCommunity 
Engagement & 

Policy



6

Executive Summary

Sneffels Energy Board 
Recognizing the power of collaboration and leveraging grant funding, EcoAction Partners
formed the Sneffels Energy Board in 2009 to address sustainability at a regional level. The
SEB (formerly named the Western San Juan Community Energy Board), aims to reduce
GHG emissions and consumption of valuable natural resources in the region through
coordinated community engagement, project implementation, and policy change at both the
local and state level.

The Sneffels Energy Board brings together local leaders to collaborate on setting and
accomplishing regional sustainability goals. Partners of the Board meet quarterly to share
information and experiences, design successful regional programs, identify new
opportunities, and analyze progress.

The Board is made up of government and staff representatives from San Miguel and Ouray
counties, the towns of Telluride, Mountain Village, Ophir, Norwood, Ridgway, and the City of
Ouray as well as utility partners, San Miguel Power Association, Black Hills Energy, and a
number of citizen group representatives.

The Board established regional sustainability goals and published the predecessor to this
document, a collaborative Sustainability Action Plan, in 2010. They collect, analyze, and
report on regional greenhouse gas emissions data and coordinate the implementation of
regional action items to more efficiently reach regional goals. The group gathers and
shares information from the Colorado statewide sustainability network and identifies key
local priorities, partnerships, and climate solutions. The creation of this Climate Action Plan
by the Board represents the ongoing regional commitment to collaborative climate action in
support of a more sustainable future for our region.

Executive Summary



A Roadmap to our Sustainable Future: 
This CAP is our regional roadmap for reducing GHG emissions and creating a sustainable,
thriving future. The plan is intended to guide policy makers, organizations, businesses, and
individuals in community planning across the next decade. The plan creates a timeline for
high priority, ongoing, mid- and long- term actions. We focused on high-level action items that
will support the whole region in achieving our GHG emissions reduction goals while improving
our social and economic conditions.

A 10-Year Plan with Short- and Long-Term Goals and 
Recommendations… 1-, 3-, 5- and 10! 
While looking ahead to 2050, our CAP presents 1-, 3-, 5-, and 10- year actions and goals to
balance long-term planning with ongoing high priority actionable items.
We have integrated opportunities that are newly advantageous to our region including
beneficial electrification, additional energy production capacity within Tri-State, the decreasing
cost of solar PV systems, and a growing local food supply and distribution infrastructure.
As our communities continue to experience rapid growth many of our sustainability goals are
becoming more difficult to reach. The plan aims to balance the actions and programs that are
reducing our emissions and the inevitable growth driving them up. As our tourism economy,
population, part-time visitor and construction numbers are increasing, we need to look at
collaborative, creative, and progressive strategies to reach our goals. The incremental
timeframe will help to integrate short-term, high priority action items with a sustainable long-
term plan for our community.

7

Executive Summary

Welcome to the Ouray & San Miguel County 
Regional Climate Action Plan



Measurable & Target-Oriented:
This plan is meant to support our community in reaching our long-term goal of a 90% emissions
reduction by 2050. The goals outlined in this document are supported by state and federal goals
and the international community’s commitments that uphold the Paris Climate Agreement to “limit
global warming to well below 2, preferably to 1.5 degrees Celsius, compared to pre-industrial
levels.” We have shifted away from previous targets tied to per capita data. The complex nature of
accounting for a variable seasonal visitor and part-time resident population makes it difficult to
accurately evaluate per person values within each GHG emissions sector. For this reason, we are
focusing goals on the tonnage of GHG emissions released per sector and overall consumption of
resources.
Our goals & targets are aligned with Colorado’s new GHG emissions reduction goals, adopted in
2019 through Colorado’s Climate Action Plan to Reduce Pollution (Colorado’s House Bill 19-1261),
which:
§ Sets Colorado statewide goals to reduce 2025 greenhouse gas emissions by at least 26%,

2030 greenhouse gas emissions by at least 50%, and 2050 greenhouse gas emissions by at
least 90% of the levels of greenhouse gas emissions that existed in 2005.

§ Specifies that Air Quality Control Commission (AQCC) will consider in implementing policies
and promulgating rules to reduce greenhouse gas pollution, including the benefits of
compliance and the equitable distribution of those benefits, the costs of compliance,
opportunities to incentivize clean energy in transitioning communities, and the potential to
enhance the resilience of Colorado's communities and natural resources to climate impacts.

§ Directs AQCC to consult with the PUC regarding rules that affect the providers of retail
electricity in Colorado.

8

Executive Summary 

Continued…

Executive Summary

https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/the-paris-agreement/the-paris-agreement


Intended Use:
We envision several intended uses for this document. It is meant to act as a guide for planning and
implementing sustainability initiatives over the next decade across the region. We designed this plan
to represent the needs and priorities of the diverse stakeholder groups across the region, and hope
this document is able to balance these interests and support the effective implementation of action
items. The actions within this document represent more than GHG emissions reduction potential.
The CAP looks at social, economic, and environmental benefits to our community and will support
non-profits, community organizations, entrepreneurs, governments, individuals, and other groups in
contributing to sustainable development in the region. We hope volunteers, educators, and citizens
alike will use this document to find and contribute to ongoing and upcoming projects and programs.
Some readers may want or need more technical information than others (e.g., Jurisdictional-specific
actions identified, GHG emissions factors used in calculations, reduction estimate methodology,
further resources, etc.), all of which is included in the Appendices. Lastly, the plan documents and
celebrates past accomplishments and the ongoing work of our regional partners in moving our
community to a more sustainable future.

A Comprehensive, Collaborative Approach: Stakeholder 
Engagement, Community Outreach, Analysis & Modeling
From beginning to end, the creation of our Climate Action Plan has been a collaborative process.
The SEB met monthly to review progress and provide feedback. Our contributors represent a wide
group of stakeholders within our region, citizens and local politicians of varying backgrounds, ages,
professions, passions, and expertise, and feel this document reflects the collective intention of our
community. We have gathered community input through an extensive outreach process and with the
support of the SEB have integrated the priorities of our community members into the document.
Moreover, as a new ICLEI member, we enter a new era of climate modeling and action assessment.
Though ICLEI’s ClearPath tool we join a global network of communities sharing strategies and
utilizing a set of scientifically recognized GHG assessment and planning tools. We look forward to
continuing our growth and learning in partnership with local and global stakeholders to best serve
our community’s sustainability needs. 9

Executive Summary 

Continued…

Executive Summary



Climate Action Mitigates Risk and Creates Opportunities:
It’s no secret our climate is changing. Already we see less yearly snowfall, increased wildfire
frequency and severity, and temperatures which continue to rise. Because much of our livelihood
relies on our interactions with our shared landscape, these changes endanger us all. Our collective
response to climate change not only mitigates risk, but creates new opportunity for residents,
businesses, and visitors. Opportunities vary across sector, yet no sector is exempt. In other words, no
matter how you engage with and participate in our community, this CAP provides an avenue to
reduce GHG emissions, save money and improve our social environment!

Climate Action & Environmental Stewardship are Regional
Community Values:
San Miguel and Ouray County are committed to environmental stewardship and taking action to
preserve and protect our climate and natural resources. Collaborative climate efforts have been the
common narrative in our community since long before the creation of the SEB.
Our Community has a long history of stepping up to care for our natural resources. From long-time
logging prevention on our forest lands to pursuing renewable energy sources and transitioning to
year-round mountain recreation economies, we have worked to preserve what makes this place so
special. In the early 2000’s the community raised over $50 million to purchase and preserve
Telluride’s Valley Floor. This strong sense of community activism presides across the San Juan’s and
makes it possible for the SEB to pursue the goals we have established.

10

Executive Summary 

Continued…

Executive Summary



Jurisdiction-Specific CAPs, GHG Inventories, and Goals:
Several individual jurisdictions within the region have developed GHG Inventories, Energy Action
Plans or Climate Action Plans, and goals specific to their community to direct GHG reduction actions
and track local accomplishments. These community-specific plans complement the regional CAP by
providing actions that are more specific to be accomplished per jurisdiction. Community-specific and
municipal-specific GHG Inventories help track program and project results on a more granular level.
All community-level and regionally collaborative accomplishments contribute toward reaching our
greater GHG reduction goals.
Town of Telluride: Municipal and community-level GHG tracking in place; Telluride-specific CAP
developed 2015, updated in 2021; target of carbon neutrality.
Town of Mountain Village: Municipal & community-level GHG tracking in place; TMV-specific CAP 
developed 2020; target of carbon neutrality by 2050. 
San Miguel County: Municipal & community-level GHG tracking in place; target of carbon neutrality
City of Ouray: Through 2012, the City adopted an Energy Action Plan, guiding them toward
implementing many actions that reduce government energy use into the future.
Ouray County: Adopted CC4CA goals and strategies.
Town of Ridgway: Ridgway encourages the use of carbon-free and renewable energy systems
within the town and supports the goal of carbon neutrality for Colorado.
Town of Norwood: Adopted Colorado’s previous state goals of reducing GHG emissions 20% by
2020 along with the rest of the Sneffels Energy Board.
Town of Ophir: Established the Ophir Self Reliance Committee that is working towards the goal of
carbon neutrality and the Ophir Water Commission that is implementing water efficiency actions.

Appendix 1 displays jurisdiction-specific actions prioritized for accomplishment by 2030. Because
our region varies drastically in topography, energy requirements, financial resources, and
economies, some municipalities and jurisdictions have prioritized specific actions that have already
been accomplished elsewhere in the region. These actions, while important, were not included in the
regional plan as they are only applicable for one or a few individual jurisdictions. 11

Executive Summary 

Continued…

Executive Summary

https://townofmountainvillage.com/green-living/our-environmental-footprint/
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5df11e0c4665f43b095e0016/t/6143d7f8c7668a5494444b05/1631836152843/CC4CA+Policy+Statement+-+Adopted+June+4,+2021.pdf


Shared Regional Resources:
Many resources in our counties are shared across jurisdictions making clean delineation of GHG
responsibilities between each jurisdiction challenging. A prime example is the Telluride Wastewater
Treatment Plant (WWTP), which is used by the communities of Telluride, Mountain Village, and
nearby communities located in San Miguel County. While Telluride is responsible for maintenance
and operations of the plant, Mountain Village contributes 15% of funding, and the plant is located
outside of both town limits, so associated electricity and natural gas used to operate the plant are
categorized as part of San Miguel County’s usage. The gondola serving Mountain Village and
Telluride is another excellent example of a collaborative and shared critical resource for these
closely-tied communities. Thus, while community-specific inventory values and plans are important
in directing specific actions, situations like the WWTP make it clear that the region must closely
collaborate toward accomplishing GHG reduction goals.

The regional communities also share common challenges associated with an increase in tourism, an
increasing cost of living, and a shortage of affordable housing for full-time locals. This common
scenario in tourism-based economies has escalated in recent years creating an imminent need for
us to collaboratively address housing needs and plan for the future. Much of our workforce and
material goods come from surrounding communities, which closely ties us to the broader Western
Slope region. Providing local, affordable housing decreases transit-associated GHG emissions while
maintaining the cultural and economic viability of our communities. GHG reduction goals are
absolute, not based on census population or our visitor economy, so we must include consideration
of the changing dynamic and increasing use of resources within our region while planning GHG
reduction strategies.

12

Executive Summary 

Continued…

Executive Summary



Overview:
The Sneffels Energy Board established a baseline GHG Inventory based
on 2010 data from which to track progress toward 2020 goals and
beyond. Before this time, community-wide utility use and emissions were
unknown, and some governments were not yet tracking their own utility
use. This 2010 process established a baseline GHG Inventory and a
process for tracking resource consumption and associated emissions.

EcoAction Partners updates the GHG Inventory annually with available
data, analyzes the results, and annually reports on progress to our
communities. Our overall regional GHG emissions have decreased (See
Figure 1 pg. 14) since 2010, despite an overall increase in fossil fuel
consumption due to an increased economy, visitor numbers, and full-time
resident population. We have successfully reduced our energy use
emissions by 20% through 2020, according to our 2020 GHG Inventory
analysis as seen in Figure 2 (pg. 14), as a result of decreased electricity
consumption from efficiency improvements and a significant increase in
renewable energy production in our electricity mix.

13

GHG Inventory

Our Regional GHG Inventory 



14

GHG Inventory

These charts show the trend of our total GHG emissions from 2010-2020 and emissions associated with building energy use which accounts
for 50% of our overall emissions and is supported by the most accurate consumption data. By tracking our emissions annually, we can analyze
the influence of annual fluctuations from weather, economic shifts, COVID, and other impacting anomalies, while also tracking our progress
toward goals. Accurate data has not been available on an annual basis for a few categories of our emissions, so it is helpful to review building
energy emissions separately to more accurately understand the trends in this key sector.

EcoAction Partners is in the process of converting our regional GHG Inventory calculation methodology to ICLEI’s ClearPath online GHG
tracking and analysis tool, the leading online platform for complete GHG inventories, forecasts, climate action plans, and monitoring at the
community-wide or government operation scale. Through the use of ClearPath, our Inventory will be directly comparable to other cities and
communities across the U.S., and around the world, including a number of similar rural mountain communities. Additionally, ClearPath provides
GHG forecasting and tracking tools to help guide us toward our GHG reduction goals.

Our baseline 2010 regional GHG Inventory was established in the early years of community-wide GHG emissions calculations using the state-
of-the-art calculation methodology of the time. Since then, ICLEI has been at the forefront of leading and influencing methodology changes that
are defined in the GPC Protocol. Once the conversion to ClearPath is complete, our GHG Inventory from 2020 forward will no longer reflect a
reduction in electricity emissions associated with RECs (see pg. 20) or other carbon reduction offsets. Progress with these activities will
continue to be calculated separately as “information-only” data, in order to track and understand the success of our policies, programs and
actions. The charts above reflect our historic GHG tracking methodology for purposes of consistency across 2010 to 2020.

Our Regional GHG Inventory
Figure 1 Figure 2



15

GHG Inventory

Geographic Boundary & Scopes:
We calculate emissions associated with San Miguel and
Ouray Counties, including electricity production, building
energy and other uses of utilities, vehicle and airline
transportation, food consumption, waste, and material use.
Scope 1 and 2 emissions sourced from directly within our
boundaries are officially included in our updated 2020 GHG
Inventory, in accordance with the GPC. Traditionally since
2010, we have also included some Scope 3 emissions for
services located outside of our county boundary but that we
have a direct influence over. For example, waste transported
to landfills and recycling facilities in other counties, the
Montrose Regional Airport of which 75% of emissions are
associated with travelers to our counties, and food
consumption, all fall within the scope 3 category, but are
interrelated with our region's emission reduction goals. We
continue to track data associated with these scope 3 factors
in order to track progress towards reaching sustainability
goals. It is important to recognize that successfully reducing
GHG emissions will also require action at the state and
federal policy-making levels. For this, the SEB continues to
prioritize highly collaborative planning and programming to
better address the scope 3, and other complex, region wide
emissions sources.

https://www.epa.gov/greeningepa/greenhouse-gases-epa

Our Regional GHG Inventory

Figure 3

https://www.epa.gov/greeningepa/greenhouse-gases-epa


GHG Inventory

16

EcoAction Partners conducts an annual regional and
jurisdiction specific greenhouse gas inventory to analyze
our regional emissions breakdown and update
programming to reflect our emissions profile. The
geographic boundary of our inventory includes San Miguel
and Ouray County. We have several key scope three
emissions (outside of the inventory’s geographic scope)
which we account for in our program creation and regional
policy decisions. These include the Montrose Regional
Airport, the 3XM and Bruin Waste Management waste
collection facilities, and material consumption such as
food.

San Miguel County 

Ouray County 

SEB Board Territory 

Our Regional GHG Inventory

Geographic Boundary & Scope 
Continued ….

Airport

Key Jurisdiction

Waste Management Facility

Major Highway

KEY

Figure 4



Our Regional GHG Inventory

17

GHG Inventory

Sources of GHG Emissions:

Figure 5

Buildings produce the majority of our GHG emissions
(28% residential, 17% commercial in 2020). This 45%
includes a reduction association with electricity offset by
the purchase of REC’s, without which building
emissions would produce well over 50% of our region’s
emissions. Thus, reducing GHG emissions associated
with buildings remains our highest priority.

Transportation related GHG emissions from vehicles
and air travel account for 29% of our emissions. Air
travel includes the Telluride Airport (TEX) and a
percentage of travel through the Montrose Regional
Airport (MTJ), as almost 75% of passengers through
MTJ are visiting our region.

We account for major material production aspects of our
GHG emissions as well, including food, fuel production
and waste, which account for the remaining 26% of our
emissions. As a remote, rural region with a tourist-based
economy, tracking these emissions is important to us,
as we recognize our responsibility to reduce our overall
contribution to global emissions.

Note: This GHG emissions pie chart currently reflects our historical GHG Inventory calculation methodology which accounts for RECs as offsets, 
for consistency purposes of this document.



18

GHG Inventory

This ”business as usual” forecast includes TriState’s emission reduction promises detailed in their Responsible Energy Plan – 50% renewable supply
by 2024, and 100% renewable supply by 2040. Though this trajectory will noticeably reduce our emissions associated with grid supplied electricity, it
will not bring our region in line with either 2030 or 2050 GHG reduction goals without implementing additional strategies. The increasing trend of GHG
emissions is due to a growing tourism economy. While the rate of this growth is predicted to decrease it continues to impact all sectors except
residential energy use.

Fortunately, because we have the support of both SMPA and TriState in the renewable energy transition, we can focus on reduction strategies outside
of grid supplied electricity, namely local renewable energy production, beneficial electrification, waste reduction, transportation, and consumption-based
emissions (which includes waste, food, and cement). These actions are incorporated into the reduction pathway on page 19.

See the CAP supporting documents webpage for details on the calculations and assumptions made in these forecasts.

Our Regional GHG Inventory

Forecasting: Business As Usual

Figure 6

http://ecoactionpartners.org/CAP/documents


19

GHG Inventory

This chart displays the combined effects of both high-level and localized reduction strategies, including EV adoption, conversion of residential and
commercial spaces from natural gas heating to electric heat pumps or boilers, improved building energy codes, and other actions outlined in this plan.
This pathway shows that we can significantly reduce our GHG emissions associated with both residential and commercial energy use. However, if our
tourism economy continues to grow at the current pace, we will need to implement creative comprehensive policies and actions in order to reduce our
emissions associated with commercial buildings, transportation and material consumption to reach our goals.

See the CAP supporting documents webpage for details on the calculations and assumptions made in these forecasts.

Our Regional GHG Inventory 

Forecasting: Reduction Pathways

Figure 7

http://ecoactionpartners.org/CAP/documents


20

GHG Inventory

Renewable energy credits (RECs) have been part of our regional
strategy for supporting renewable energy. While RECs are not a
guarantee that additional renewable energy is produced that
would not have been produced otherwise, and RECs do not
actually reduce the region’s GHG emissions, purchasing RECs is
a first step to demonstrate public demand and commitment to
renewable energy while we work to install local renewable energy
sources. REC purchases are also not restricted by SMPA’s
contract with Tri-State, while non-net metered local renewable
energy production is currently limited. Thus, RECs have been and
will continue to be part of our strategy moving forward.

Locally, SMPA provides REC purchase opportunities to its
members through their Totally Green Program, which is an easy
opt-in program for members to choose to offset electricity use by
100%. In addition to the RECs, the funds collected through the
Totally Green Program support local renewable energy and
energy efficiency projects and incentives.

Locally, we have a few options to increase the percentage of
renewable power that is electrifying homes and businesses: build
onsite solar, add community solar gardens, build a large, utility-
scale solar array owned by Tri-State, and develop local
hydropower. Because these projects will take time to develop, in
the meantime we support the purchase of RECs to demonstrate
to our electricity provider that we support a transition to
renewable energy.

To this end, we have tracked our purchases of RECs since 2010,
and currently offset 25% of our electricity use. We also track local
renewable energy installation capacity, to assist us in measuring
progress toward local renewable energy generation.

GHG Offsets: Renewable Energy Credits and Carbon Offsets

RECs: tradable, non-tangible energy commodities in the U.S. that represent
proof that 1 MWh of electricity was generated from an eligible renewable
energy resource (renewable electricity) and was fed into the shared system of
power lines, which transport energy. Telluride’s REC offsets are associated with
power produced by the Ridgway Hydro Dam, and are thus subject to
fluctuations in annual precipitation, such as the drought conditions in 2018.

Carbon offset: a greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions reduction or carbon
sequestration enhancement made in order to compensate for, or offset, an
emissions made elsewhere such as air travel. Each offset represents one
metric ton of carbon dioxide or its GHG equivalent. Carbon offsetting has
gained appeal among consumers of services in emission sectors that do not
have immediate opportunities to implement low emission or zero emission
strategies. Our local partner Pinhead Climate Institute offers Colorado-based
carbon offsets.

Figure 8

http://www.pinheadinstitute.org/pinhead-climate-institute/


Introduction to the Regional CAP

21

Introduction

Timeline: 
Amount of time in 
years expected to 
complete an 
objective or action:
Current, 1, 3, 5, 10, 
Ongoing

Objective:
Broad scale or big picture goals and changes that must occur to reach our regions’ GHG emissions reduction goals. 

GHG Reduction Potential:
A measure of the GHG reduction potential for each 
objective and action.  These values were derived from 
ICLEI’s ClearPath model and simplified to a value of 1-4, 
with 4 having the highest potential for GHG reduction.

Action: 
Smaller scale projects, programs 
and policies that contribute to 
achieving an objective.

Co-Benefits:
Additional positive impacts associated with achieving our objectives and actions. Nearly all 
objectives and actions within this plan have co-benefits. These benefits were determined through 
reviews of academic research, case studies from similar regions, and will be further informed by 
community engagement through 2022. The CAP supporting documents webpage includes a list of 
supporting literature for co-benefits of various objectives and actions. 

Promotes Equity 
Fosters Economic Sustainability
Improves Local Environmental Quality 
Enhances Public Health & Safety

Builds Resilience

GHG Reduction 
Potential 

MT CO2 Reduced If Action is Fully 
Implemented 

1 =  4-1900 Mt by 2050 – Marginal  
2 =  1900 -3200 MT by 2050 – Small  
3 =  3200-9600 mt by 2050 – Medium  
4 =  9600-46000 Mt by 2050 - Large 

 
 
 
 
 

Partners: 
Community 
stakeholders who 
can and are likely 
to contribute to 
achieving an 
objective or action

http://ecoactionpartners.org/CAP/documents


The CAP addresses emissions, accomplishments, objectives and goals across 8 sectors 
that are closely tied to our regional emission reduction and sustainability goals. 

22

Introduction

High Impact Sectors

Energy Supply
Generation of our 

community’s electricity

Building Energy Use
Energy used by commercial 

and residential buildings

Transportation 
Emissions associated with on-road 
movements and aviation operations 

Waste
Trash, recycling, and compostable 

materials; landfill reduction and diversion

Food
Emissions from food production, 

transportation, and storage

Water
Water supply, use, pumping, and 
treatment and watershed health 

Land
Land use and health, sequestration 
opportunities, and agricultural use

Community Engagement & Policy
Stakeholder partnerships and ownership of 

policy and decision-making



Community Engagement 
& Policy 

23

Community Engagement

We felt it was important to highlight actions around community
engagement and policy. Reaching our regional emissions reduction goals
will not happen if we solely rely on external forces to reduce our carbon
footprint. Individual actions make a difference, and we need to step up as
a community to prioritize policies and partnerships that move us toward
our goals. Everyone has a role to play and only through working together
will we reach our goals.

We hope to see community ownership of these actions and have
prioritized collaboration throughout this document. We aim to address
any conflicting priorities across the region and align with regional GHG
reduction goals and a commitment to a more sustainable future. Ideally,
emissions analysis will be integrated into all decision making, centering
scientifically informed policy. The nature of climate action is
intersectional. We recognize that this interconnection requires actions
across the board to achieve the change we hope to see in our
community.



Community Engagement & Policy 
Community Engagement

Community Engagement & Policy Accomplishments 
§ Development of and continued collaboration of regional Sneffels Energy Board.
§ Participation in state and nationwide organizations such as CC4CA, CAST, ACCO, Climate Mayors, Mountain Pact, RMCO, and others.
§ Telluride Institute is developing a growing relationship with Western State University’s Masters in Environmental Management program,
bringing student-based projects to the region, increasing our capacity for environmental work.

Community Engagement & Policy Recommendations 
OBJECTIVE 1: Increase community engagement and continue to prioritize collaborative and intersectional decision making and action 
implementation. 

24
GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY



Sector: Energy Supply

Energy Supply
Greenhouse gas emissions associated with our energy supply primarily stem
from the use of electricity and natural gas in residential and commercial
buildings. Energy supply is embedded within and accounted for in the building
energy use GHG inventory sectors and analysis. Energy supply is separated
into its own sector with prioritized actions, as changes in electricity production
and sources of energy can significantly impact the reduction potential of actions
in other GHG sectors. Thus, focusing on supply-side planning will bring about
drastic reductions independent of recommended actions for businesses and
residents.

Electricity and natural gas use accounts for over 50% of San Miguel and Ouray
County’s total GHG emissions. The carbon intensity of this sector directly
relates to the fuel associated with the supply of these utilities from SMPA and
BHE. Natural gas has its own emissions factor associated with its use as a
direct energy source for heating, hot water, cooking, and more. Because we are
unable to influence the production or emissions factor associated with natural
gas, recommendations in this section focus on transitioning electricity supply to
renewable sources. The mix of these sources of electricity directly impact the
emissions associated with electricity use, with fossil fuel resources having a
significantly greater carbon intensity than renewable energy sources.

25



Energy Supply

26

Sector: Energy Supply

Fortunately, SMPA has committed to 80% renewable production by 2030. Figure 9 (pg. 27) shows the
trend toward increasing renewable energy sources and a decrease of fossil fuel sources within the
electricity supplied through SMPA from Tri-State. These changes, along with efficiency improvements
and the viability of community energy production, make achieving drastic GHG emissions reductions in
the coming decade a realistic possibility. The state of Colorado plans for an 80% reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions associated with electricity production and a 37% reduction for emissions
associated with natural gas. Our region is well positioned to achieve these goals by contributing to
statewide GHG reduction while providing savings for our residents and businesses through a mix of
rooftop and community solar, and larger regional renewable generation.

SMPA’s contract with TriState includes a limit on local energy generation and distribution within SMPA
territory. While this limit was recently expanded to allow for additional community solar farm capacity, it
still controls overall production capacity allowable. According to SMPA’s contract with Tri-State:
§ The Total SMPA system-owned or controlled generation shall not exceed 5% of that SMPA’s annual

energy requirements in any calendar year, and the total installed generation nameplate capacity shall
not exceed 15% of that SMPA’s annual peak demand in any calendar year. Generation projects that
are eligible under this Policy include renewable or distributed generation under the ownership or
control of SMPA.

§ Tri-State has instituted a new Policy 119 for community solar generation projects. A community solar
generation project (CSG Project) is defined as an SMPA owned or controlled (e.g., through a power
purchase agreement) solar photovoltaic generation project that is intended to be marketed by SMPA
under subscription arrangements to SMPA’s retail customers. Eligible CSG Projects under this policy
are limited to an aggregated total of the lesser of (a) 4,600,000 kilowatt-hours or (b) CSG Projects
sized to serve no more than two percent (2%) of the 2018 Tri-State energy sales (kWh) to SMPA.

It is important to note, that net-metered renewable energy systems below 10 kW, such as a typical
residential roof-mounted PV solar array are not limited by this cap on larger scale power production
within SMPA’s region. Therefore, increasing the installation of smaller net-metered systems has the
potential to significantly reduce our electricity-associated GHGs without counting towards the local
generation limits.



Energy Supply Trends & Accomplishments

27

Sector: Energy Supply

§ Increase in non-fossil fuel electricity production from 13% to
37% as shown in Figure 9 at left, as a result of local public
pressure.

§ SMPA territory has successfully achieved 5% local
renewable energy power production, as a result of SMPA,
government, and private projects built and operating across
the area.

§ Due to pressure by progressive cooperatives such as SMPA,
this 5% capacity limit set by SMPA’s contract with Tri-State
has been expanded to allow for an additional 2% of
generation from community solar arrays.

§ SMPA’s first community solar array in Paradox Valley was
the 2nd largest of its kind when constructed and was
completely subscribed within three years.

§ SMPA’s 2nd array is an income-qualified solar array located
outside of Norwood has recently become 100% subscribed.

§ SMPA and Tri-State have both adopted a progressive
renewable energy production goal of 80% renewable
production by 2030.

§ SMPA’s Green Blocks program has changed to Totally
Green, as a result of community-level input. The program is
now easy to join to offset 100% of a members’ monthly
electricity use.

§ Net metered renewable electricity production has increased
by over five times since 2010.

§ Mountain Village provides additional financial incentives for
net metered solar PV systems.

The chart above shows our electricity fuel mix based on production and
transmission data provided by Tri-State and local renewable energy
production within SMPA territory. Tri-State’s fuel mixture was calculated
based on annual member reports for 2010, 2016, and 2020. The trend for
Tri-State’s fuel mix between 2016 and 2020 was calculated linearly.

SMPA provides electricity to homes and businesses in our region. SMPA’s
power supplier, Tri-State, provides SMPA with 37% of its energy from
renewable resources including wind, solar, and hydropower. The remaining
63% of Tri-State’s energy currently comes from fossil fuels. This mixture
defines our electricity emissions factor (mtCO2e/kWh).

Figure 9



Energy Supply Recommendations

28

Sector: Energy Supply

OBJECTIVE 1: Increase percentage of electricity provided by renewable energy sources.

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY



Sector: Building Energy Use

Building Energy Use

Buildings are currently the primary consumer of energy in our region and
therefore are the largest emitting sector with 45% of our total GHG emissions.
Emissions in this sector come from electricity and natural gas use, and a small
amount of propane consumption. Thus, reductions in the building sector will
come from supply side transition to renewable energy, beneficial electrification,
and increased efficiency of our buildings.

Many of our commercial buildings are mixed use and include residential space,
and many of our residences are larger than many commercial spaces across the
region. There is significant cross-over between the recommended actions for
buildings in both the residential and commercial sectors, so our objectives and
prioritized actions apply to all buildings. With a complex mix of historical buildings
and new construction, unimproved, and newly renovated buildings,
recommendations to reduce energy in the building sector are diverse and aim to
address building energy use from several angles to benefit all community
members.

29



Building Energy Use

30

Sector: Building Energy

Residential energy accounts for 28% of our region’s total GHG
emissions. San Miguel and Ouray County’s residential community is
primarily comprised of free market and workforce housing rentals,
which vary in age, quality, size, and occupancy. These residences may
be single family homes, multifamily properties, mobile homes, and
residences in mixed-use buildings.

Commercial energy consumption accounts for 17% of our region’s GHG
emissions, and similarly to residential energy, nearly all these emissions
come from electricity and natural gas use. Free market and subsidized
properties comprise San Miguel and Ouray Counties’ commercial
building stock and vary in age, quality, size, and occupancy. These
buildings may be owner-occupied and/or tenant-occupied, condominium
style and mixed-use buildings.

As our tourism economy, population, and part-time visitor numbers
cause an ongoing increase in construction, the number of utility
accounts have increased as well, causing a challenging situation to
address with the aim of reducing our total GHG emissions. Our
collaborative and focused actions must include creative and
progressive strategies if we are to reach our goals.



Building Energy Use Trends - Electricity

31

Sector: Building Energy

EcoAction Partners tracks annual electricity use and local renewable energy production for analysis by the SEB. Electricity consumption in San
Miguel and Ouray Counties is graphed by jurisdiction in the charts above. The top of each bar indicates the total electricity use in each county per
year. Electricity use that is offset by SMPA Green Blocks or produced through local renewable energy is separated from general usage in order to
show progress on each of these strategies.

Electricity use across SMC has held relatively steady aside from a noticeable increase in 2019 and a COVID-19 associated decrease in 2020,
indicating success with our efficiency programs. The Town of Ridgway and City of Ouray show a similar trend. The 2019 increase is likely a
combination of a noticeable increase in tourism as well as the beginnings of transition to electricity from fossil fuel use. It could also be accounted
for due to an increase in installation and use of air conditioning systems during summer months as temperatures continue to rise. The decrease in
2020 is attributed to the impacts of COVID-19. Ouray County experienced an increase in commercial activity that increased electricity consumption
from 2018 through 2020.

In 2019 SMPA revamped their Green Blocks program to Totally Green which is designed to make it easier for members to offset their electricity use
100%, significantly increasing participation in the program. Net-metered renewable energy system installations have also noticeably increased in
recent years as the costs for solar PV has decreased worldwide.

Figure 10 Figure 11 



Building Energy Use Trends – Natural Gas

32

Sector: Building Energy

EcoAction Partners tracks annual natural gas use along with weather data for analysis by the SEB. Natural gas use is significantly impacted by
outdoor winter temperatures and annual snowfall as it is used to heat buildings and for snowmelt systems. The SEB analyzes actual and normalized
natural gas consumption along with weather charts, in order to fully understand the trends. Actual natural gas consumption in San Miguel and Ouray
Counties is graphed by jurisdiction in the charts above. The top of each bar indicates the total natural gas use in each county per year.

Actual natural gas use across both counties has been noticeably increasing as our regional economy expands. A dramatic increase in new
construction is far out-weighing efficiency program impacts, even with improved building energy codes. We’ve also seen an increase in natural gas
use due to conversions from propane to natural gas, although this impact is difficult to track due to lack of data from propane and natural gas
companies. The decrease in 2020 is attributed to the impacts of COVID-19.

Natural gas use can only be offset through carbon offsets (not RECs) since it cannot be produced through renewable energy methods. A transition
away from natural gas to electricity is required in order to reach GHG emission reduction goals associated with natural gas.

*2012: gap in data provided; & a TMV snowmelt system was under remodel during the winter.

Figure 12 Figure 13 



Building Energy Use Accomplishments

33

Sector: Building Energy

§ All governments have taken actions to improve energy efficiency of their buildings and utility uses. A few key examples:
§ Telluride built renewable energy projects and purchases RECs from power produced at the Ridgway Hydro Dam to offset 100% of

government electricity use and a significant portion of the community’s electricity use.
§ SMC received a $750,000 DOLA grant for energy efficiency, solar PV systems, and solar battery storage for properties in Ilium and

Norwood. This project is reducing county carbon emissions by 50%, and SMC is offsetting the rest with SMPA’s Totally Green program,
resulting in 100% renewable electricity use for SMC.

§ Ouray County is investigating a net zero carbon initiative similar to what SMC is undertaking and is a Totally Green member.
§ The Town of Ridgway has reached 100% renewable energy offset through SMPA’s Totally Green program.
§ Ridgway Town Hall, Ouray hot springs/gym and Library, street lighting, and most other government facilities across the region have been

converted to 100% LED lighting.
§ The Town of Norwood upgraded all municipal lighting and streetlights to LED bulbs.
§ Ridgway and Ouray collaborated to examine use of performance contracting to improve the efficiency of municipal facilities.

§ Enhanced electricity metering & monitoring was made available through SMPA’s online SmartHub tool: SMPA improved our ability to track electricity
use in real time. Although metering does not reduce emissions directly, it allows residents and business owners alike the opportunity to review hourly
electricity use and use data analysis to identify opportunities to improve efficiency and save money.

§ 2018 International Energy Code adopted for new construction with local amendments adopted by Telluride, TMV, Ridgway and Ouray County. SMC
(which includes Norwood) plans to adopt during 2021. Ophir will likely follow suit soon after.

§ Adoption and implementation of Renewable Energy Mitigation Programs (REMP & TEMP) to address mitigation of exterior energy systems (such as
snowmelt systems, heated garages, and outdoor spas and pools). Funds collected through these programs have been used on a wide variety of
projects to reduce emissions.

§ Ridgway secondary school EV charger is now online and fully operational.
§ Sunnyside is a new net zero affordable housing community under construction by Telluride and SMC to be completed in 2022.
§ EAP’s SMPA IQ Weatherization Program (CARE) has successfully weatherized 164 homes between 2017-2021, reducing annual GHG emissions by

280 mtCO2e, significantly saving homeowners and renters on annual utility bills, and improving the comfort and safety of these homes. Participating
homes have historically received further utility support through a 50% offset from the SMPA IQ community solar array. The array is currently at full
capacity and several key stakeholders are exploring additional solar opportunities earmarked for income qualified residents.

§ The Towns of Norwood and Ridgway have gained International Dark Sky designation.
§ Telluride Ski & Golf participated in the National Ski Areas Association Climate Challenge from 2012-2019, continuing to make strides toward

reducing direct energy use and waste associated with ski area operations as well as influencing indirect GHG emissions of employees and guests.



Building Energy Use Recommendations

34

Sector: Building Energy

OBJECTIVE 1: Beneficial electrification of buildings

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY

Beneficial Electrification includes the application of electricity to end-uses that would otherwise consume fossil fuels (e.g., natural gas, propane, oil,
gasoline) where doing so satisfies at least one of following conditions, without adversely affecting the others: save consumers money over time;
benefit the environment and reduce [GHG] emissions; improve product quality or consumer quality of life; or foster a more robust and resilient grid.
(from SMPA, per The Beneficial Electrification League)

This method of reducing GHG emissions has just recently become viable in our region as our overall electricity fuel supply mixture has changed.
Previously highly carbon-intensive, Tri-State’s electricity emissions factor was too high for electrification to decrease GHG emissions. As our
electricity supply shifts to be increasingly sourced from renewable sources, converting traditional uses of fossil fuels to electricity now contributes
toward reducing our regional carbon footprint. It will be important for us to work closely with SMPA during this transition in order to track the
associated increase in electricity use with fossil fuel use conversion versus electricity use increase for other more traditional reasons, such as visitor
population, economy, and new construction.



Building Energy Use Recommendations

35

Sector: Building Energy

OBJECTIVE 2: Continue to improve building energy codes for new construction, remodels and additions

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY



Building Energy Use Recommendations

36

Sector: Building Energy

OBJECTIVE 3: Increase natural gas efficiency

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY

OBJECTIVE 4: Reduce energy consumption in rentals, apartments and multifamily buildings



Building Energy Use Recommendations

37

Sector: Building Energy

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

OBJECTIVE 6: Anticipate and mitigate likely expansion of air conditioning use in new & existing buildings

OBJECTIVE 5: Improve the energy efficiency performance of existing buildings

KEY



Building Energy Use Recommendations
Sector: Building Energy

38

OBJECTIVE 7: Other actions

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY



Sector: Transportation & Aviation

Transportation & Aviation

The transportation sector encompasses ground transportation of people and goods
travelling within, to, from, and passing through San Miguel and Ouray County. GHGs
in the transportation sector stem from the combustion of liquid fuels (gasoline and
diesel) by a wide range of vehicles and feel impact from a variety of factors
(consumer choice, business demand, urban design, housing/business density,
transit corridors, commuter and visitor choices, fuel type, etc.). Types of vehicles
within this sector include personal vehicles, light trucks, commercial transport
vehicles, heavy duty vehicles, and motorcycles. Due to our region’s dependence on
tourism comprehensively accounting for all GHGs associated with transportation is
challenging. In addition, our GHG inventory was not initially set up to account for
transit busses/vans, OHVs, RVs, or other vehicles that are increasingly used across
the region. Efforts to improve our transportation emissions accounting are underway
and will be incorporated starting with the 2020 GHG Inventory. This plan does not
intend to decrease tourism in our region, but instead encourages “cleaner” vehicles
and recreation opportunities which may reach a wider audience of visitors, without
sacrificing our communities’ emission reduction goals.

Opportunities and interventions to reduce emissions in the transportation sector
span a range of scales and domains. Opportunities include shifting away from single
occupancy vehicle use, transitioning to low-emission vehicle options for personal
and commercial vehicles, and increasing viability of public transport options.
Potential benefits of these changes include reduced congestion, and improved air
quality. 39

Transportation



Vehicle Transportation Trends

40

Sector: Transportation & Aviation

Vehicle emissions have increased significantly since our 2010 baseline,
by approximately 24%. This is mainly associated with an increase in our
economy. Commuting workers, services of trades people, and a
decrease in local affordable housing have increased the amount of
workforce related vehicle transportation. The region has also
experienced an increase in tourism, with noticeable visitor and service-
related traffic increases throughout the year. During the 2020 and 2021
summer season, as people flocked away from cities, camper,
motorhome, and similar vehicles became more prevalent. Jeep and
OHV traffic has also been increasing, which is difficult to quantitatively
capture in our emissions calculations due to the remote nature of the
roads they travel.

Vehicle Transportation Accomplishments
§ Creation of the San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation

(SMART) to manage and improve public transportation serving San
Miguel County.

§ Development of Region 10’s Four County Transit Study Update report in
2013 identifying needs and opportunities for greater regional public
transit.

§ Government and commercial business – supplied increases in public
transportation opportunities for commuters and visitors.

§ Ongoing operation of the free gondola service between TMV and
Telluride. Gondola electricity emissions are 100% offset through SMPA’s
Totally Green Program.

Figure 14 



Vehicle Transportation Recommendations

41

Sector: Transportation & Aviation

OBJECTIVE 1: Decrease vehicle travel

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

OBJECTIVE 2: Increase use of electric vehicles

KEY



Sector: Transportation & Aviation

Transportation & Aviation continued…

42

GHG emissions with aviation stem from aircraft fuels exclusively. Operational GHG
emissions from buildings and vehicles are accounted for in prior sectors. Opportunities
to reduce emissions in this sector include increased aircraft efficiency, electrifying
ground support equipment, and maximizing capacity on airplanes to reduce fuel
consumption per traveler. As aviation primarily serves to bring visitors and part time
residents into San Miguel and Ouray County, we expect continued and possibly
increased flight volumes. Moreover, as tourism is the primary industry for our region,
maintaining its prevalence while optimizing efficiency is our main concern. The Telluride
airport is within scope 1+2 of our GHG emissions, as it is within our regional boundaries.
The Montrose regional airport is outside of our regional boundaries, but approximately
75% of travelers through the airport are coming to our counties, so we have traditionally
included these associated Scope 3 emissions in our GHGI.

Although many airlines intend to reduce GHGs by setting voluntary targets, mandatory
fuel efficiency requirements do not exist. Furthermore, because the airline industry
operates outside of SEB’s direct control, the recommended actions aim to encourage
and influence TEX and our regional airports instead of recommending concrete
changes. Fortunately, a substantial difference in emissions can be achieved with
intentional action when compared to the business as usual scenario.

Aviation



Aviation Trends

43

Sector: Transportation & Aviation

§ TEX began using sustainable aviation fuel (SAF), a biofuel mix, in January of 2020, one of the first airports in Colorado to provide SAF, with a
goal of providing it for 25% of fuel sales. Use of SAF will reduce operational emissions of sulfur oxides, particulate matter (both count and mass)
and carbon monoxide.

§ TEX is preparing a marketing and communications plan for its passengers on the use of SAF with the help of AVFUEL, the fuel supplier, as a
means of educating the public & increasing public support.

§ Since 2017, TEX has promoted PCI’s Carbon offset program to passengers.
§ TEX was the first large entity to subscribe to the Last Dollar community solar array to offset emissions.
§ While many visitors fly in/out of MTJ, an increase in private shuttle companies has decreased the number of private vehicle rentals.

§ After relatively steady aviation travel numbers for a few years,
the region has experienced a steady increase in airline travel
and associated GHG emissions since 2014.

§ Funding from local marketing efforts to increase visitor tourism
has increased aviation travel and associated emissions.

§ The Montrose Regional Airport (MTJ) reported a noticeable
decrease in aviation fuel use and enplanements in 2020.

§ The Telluride Airport (TEX) reported a decrease in
enplanements, but an increase in aviation fuel use from the
airport.

Aviation Accomplishments

Figure 15 



Aviation Recommendations

44

Sector: Transportation & Aviation

OBJECTIVE 3: Decrease GHG emissions per passenger associated with airline flights serving our region

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY



Sector: Waste

Waste + Material Use

Our regional waste and recycling volumes are estimated to be approximately
13,300 and 1,830 tons respectively based on the Sneffels Waste Diversion
Planning Project completed based on 2015 data. Waste, specifically municipal
solid waste, accounts for 4% of San Miguel County and Ouray County’s
emissions. On average each person generates 8.7 pounds of waste a day (2019
GHGI benchmark), slightly below the Colorado average (9 pounds/day) yet
nearly double the national average (4.5 pound/day). San Miguel County and
Ouray County’s dependence on tourism likely contributes to our high waste rate
along with the rest of Colorado. GHGs associated with waste primarily come
from organic matter (food scraps, leaf litter, wood, etc.) as it decomposes into
methane.

All materials sent to landfills and recycling facilities are transported outside of our
regional boundaries to Montrose or Grand Junction and are thus considered
Scope 3 emissions. Despite waste being outside our inventory scope, we still
track waste volumes and implement programs to decrease material sent to the
landfill. Reducing waste is a high priority value within our communities due to our
direct ability to reduce waste through the 4 R’s: refuse, reduce, reuse, and
recycle.

45



Waste & Material Use

46

Sector: Waste

Opportunities to reduce emissions in this
sector include diverting and/or salvaging
organic materials and increasing the
efficiency of hauling and processing.
Interestingly a range of benefits come into
play from diverting/salvaging organic waste
including fertilizer and biogas production,
which may be used for local food and
energy production. At approximately 45%
of our waste stream (according to the
Sneffels Waste Diversion Planning Project
completed in 2015), and a high contributor
to GHGs due to the production of methane,
increasing composting is a high priority for
our region.

We continue to work toward increasing the rate of composting as a method of reducing GHG emissions in our region. Large festival events have had
the greatest success with composting food-related waste (with Planet Bluegrass accomplishing a 75% diversion rate!). This is due to the highly
controlled festival environment where food vendors can be required to utilize compostable materials which are then collected and transported to a
regional compost facility. Small scale composting programs are on the rise, with a successful community composting program in Ophir, a free
commercial and residential composting drop-off location in Telluride, and a residential compost pickup program developed by a local entrepreneur.
Other composting opportunities continue to be explored with varying levels of progress toward development. Expansion/improvement in these facilities
along with the formation of partnerships to increase the regional composting network will allow for major reductions in both emissions and tonnage of
waste.

Figure 16 

E



Waste Trends + Accomplishments

47

Sector: Waste

General Waste:
• A composition study of condo waste stream is being conducted and coordinated with

the EPA. Updated information will be provided when available.
• Continuing to work on gathering improved information on our regional waste and better

understand its composition.
• Compost, recycling, and trash management for waste diversion at most large-scale

area events and concerts.

Composting:
• With local encouragement and financial support, regional green waste and food-related

waste are now compostable at 3XM, a private composting company located in Olathe,
CO. Efforts are in place to increase our region’s use of this service.

• Dirty Sturdy’s, a private composting business, collects food waste from residents and
businesses throughout the region which is then composted and utilized locally. They
recently received a local grant to expand their collection capacity.

• The Town of Ophir has successfully operated a community composting program since
April 2019, diverting approximately 24,000 pounds of food waste by September 2021.

Single Use Plastic:
• Telluride and Mountain Village passed regulations in 2010 to ban single use plastic

bags at grocery stores and implemented a 5-cent fee for paper bags.
• Ridgway students initiated the "Carry On Ridgway Reuses" campaign in 2018 that led

the way toward Ridgway Council acting against single use plastic bags and straws.
• TMV enacted the Planet Over Plastics Initiative in 2019 to reduce single use plastics in

Mountain Village.
• In response to Green Business Program participant requests, EcoAction Partners

began collecting plastic film in 2019 for upcycling into Trex decking. Over 1100 pounds
have been collected since program inception and it continues to expand.

• Many restaurants have converted takeout materials from plastics to compostables, and
the region continues to work toward a collection program for these commercial
compostable materials.



Waste Recommendations

48

Sector: Waste

OBJECTIVE 1: Reduce the overall volume of waste transported to landfills through efforts to reduce, reuse, recycle, repurpose and 
compost.

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY



Waste Recommendations

49

Sector: Waste

OBJECTIVE 2: Increase composting use and capacity in the region

OBJECTIVE 3: Decrease construction & demolition waste

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY



Sector: Food

Food

Food accounts for 11% of our region’s GHG emissions. Though it is considered a
Scope 3 emission it is also a high priority to address in meeting our goals.
Emissions within our food system come from the production, transportation, and
storage of goods. With a tourist economy located in a remote high-alpine
mountain region, most of our food is grown, produced, processed, and
transported from lower elevation regions. Producing and consuming local food
allows for a significant reduction in these GHG emissions, as well as the
opportunity to support local environmentally-friendly agriculture and small
businesses. Food is included in this CAP because of its intimate connection to
both human and environmental health.

Actions within this sector represent significant research and community
resilience opportunities.

50



Food Accomplishments 

51

Sector: Food

• Number and size of farmers markets across the region have increased.
• Local agricultural production across SMC, OC, and the Western Slope has increased.
• Distribution of locally produced food has increased through the development of CSA’s, food cooperatives, delivery

businesses, and other options.

Food Recommendations
OBJECTIVE 1: Increase local organic/natural food production and consumption.

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY



Sector: Water

GHG emissions associated with water use in our region come from water
pumping and treatment. Nearly all GHG emissions associated with water
treatment are tied to energy supply for those systems, while additional energy
used for heating water is included in the building energy use sector. While GHG
emissions associated with municipal water comprise less than 2% of our
region's total emissions, we have included it in this CAP as it is intimately tied to
environmental and economic health of our region.

Due to the relationship between water and energy use, our recommendations in
this section primarily focus on reducing the use of energy associated with water
consumption, pumping, and treatment. We recognize the importance of water
conservation planning, metering and monitoring, and implementation of water
conservation policies and efficiency technologies. Creative solutions to reduce
water consumption, such as eliminating use of potable water for irrigation, will
need to be considered as part of creating a sustainable future.

Water scarcity is nothing new in Western Colorado and we applaud the efforts
and actions made by Southwestern and Tri-County Water Conservancy
Districts, San Miguel Watershed Coalition, Uncompahgre Watershed
Partnership, as well as public and private landowners working to improve water
quantity and quality now and for years to come. We hope to contribute to the
goals outlined in our region’s plans for water security, while recognizing drought
mitigation stands beyond the scope of this CAP.

52

Water



Water Trends 

53

Sector: Water

EcoAction Partners tracks annual water use by communities across the region for the SEB to analyze usage, consumption, and energy associated
with water supply and wastewater treatment. Significant changes in domestic water use have been noticed to be associated with water leaks and their
repair and an increase of water use for irrigation during drought years. As our visitor economy increases, population expands, and new homes and
commercial buildings are constructed, we must continue to closely track changes in our water usage associated with this increased demand.

Of note for the above charts:
• The City of Ouray continues to work on improving their means and methods toward tracking accurate water consumption and treatment data. Since

the city’s water is supplied via gravity, water leaks in the supply system have been treated with less concern than for communities that must pump
their water supply, which leads to a relatively high volume for the size of the community.

• Enforced irrigation restrictions in drought years create a noticeable reduction in water use.
• Many consumers of municipally-supplied water are on septic systems, and thus not served by wastewater treatment plants.

Figure 18 Figure 17 



Water Accomplishments 

54

Sector: Water

• Water conservation plans have been adopted by the Towns of
Telluride and Ridgway.

• Drought mitigation plans were adopted and are enforced by Towns of
Telluride, Mountain Village, Ridgway, Norwood, and Ophir.

• Norwood installed a raw water irrigation collection system.
• The Town of Ophir identified and fixed a significant water supply leak

in 2013, reducing its water supply volume in half.
• Increase in percentage of households with low flow fixtures across

the region.
• Hazard mitigation plans for addressing drought conditions:

- San Miguel County
- Ouray County 

• San Miguel River and Uncompahgre Watershed coalitions each
produce water health reports.

• Increase in local, regional, and statewide organizational efforts to
address water consumption across Colorado.

https://www.sanmiguelcountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/260/All-Hazard-Mitigation-Plan-PDF
https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/12522/E-3b-----Resolution-2019-049-Multi-Jurisdictional-Multi-Hazard-Mitigation-Plan


Water Recommendations

55

Sector: Water

OBJECTIVE 1: Reduce water consumption from municipal and industrial uses

OBJECTIVE 2: Improve watershed health and security

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY



Sector: Land

Land use contributes to both emissions and sequestration of our region’s GHG
emissions. Carbon exists in different forms across our landscape. Soil, plants,
water, and other aspects of our region’s ecosystem exchange carbon for
different uses creating a dynamic state of equilibrium. Land use such as tilling,
planting and fertilizing cropland, and grazing livestock releases ecosystem
carbon and nitrogen as greenhouse gases into the atmosphere in the form of
carbon dioxide and other GHG trace gases such as nitrous oxide and methane.
Simultaneously, other forests, vegetation, wetlands, designated open space,
and many agricultural practices sequester carbon and increase moisture
retention of the land.

In 2019, San Miguel County hired Marc Easter Consulting LLC in tandem with
DBA Farm Table & Sky to conduct a land use GHG inventory for the county.
Their study provided insights into what changes could improve soil health (water
retention and infiltration, nutrient cycling, and crop capacity) and increase GHG
emissions and sequestration potential of SMC land. These recommendations
helped guide the development of SMC’s Payment for Ecosystem Services
Program. The PES plan highlights those exciting opportunities for ranchers,
agriculturalists, and other land managers to receive monetary compensation for
the environmental actions they practice.

56

Land



57

Sector: Land

Land Use - Forestry

Ouray County 
Non-Federal Land Cover

San Miguel County 
Non-Federal Land Cover 

Ouray and San Miguel County 
Land Cover – Spatial Distribution

Forest Land: 
72.3%

Grassland:
23.5%

Cropland: 
0.9%

Settlement: 
1.9% Other: 

1.2%

Forest Land:
52.6%

Grassland: 
41.2%

Cropland: 
3.8%

Settlement: 
1.6%

Other: 
0.3%

The health, function, and structure of our diverse ecosystems intimately relate to both our
economic sustainability and resilience to the stressors of climate change. Changes in
vegetation cover due to disturbances or natural succession impact our landscape’s ability to
sequester carbon. The following section describes changes in our beloved landscape and
the impacts it has on GHG emissions and reductions. Because our municipal and county
governments hold little control over federal land practices, we have chosen to exclude
federally owned and operated land from our emissions calculations but feel it is important to
understand and account for these changes in our goal setting and program creation
decisions.

Forests make up the vast majority of our region’s ecosystems (72.3% in Ouray County,
52.6% in San Miguel County) with grasslands constituting most of the remainder (23.5% in
OC, 41.2% in SMC). In total, our ecosystems remove around 181,000 mtCO2e annually from
the atmosphere, roughly half of our annual regional emissions. There’s potential through
PES and other local land initiatives to increase this sequestering capacity and promote long-
term forest health.

Figure 20

Figure 19 

Figure 21 



58

Forest 
Disturbances 

as of 2001

Forest 
Disturbances 

as of 2016

Sector: Land

Though most of our region’s forests remain healthy year to
year, there has been a drastic increase in forest
disturbances, specifically insect damage.

From 2001-2010, insect damage impacted roughly 68,000
acres of our region’s non-federal lands. The extent of this
damage is depicted left on both federal and non-federal land.
The GHG inventory accounting covers the emissions and
reduction changes from 2011 onward to correlate with our
2010 baseline year.

The primary impacts of insect damage takes three forms.
1. From a GHG perspective; prevents our forests from

removing carbon from the atmosphere and produces its
own emissions.

2. From a risk perspective; greatly increases the risk of
severe forest fires and mudslides.

3. From an ecological perspective; disrupts several
ecosystem processes including soil stability, flood
control, wildlife habitat, and nutrient exchange. These
may produce serious compounding affects, not fully
accountable in a GHG inventory.

Land Use – Forest Disturbances 

Figure 22 

Figure 23 



Land Use Accomplishments 

59

Sector: Land Use

• Areas throughout the region that have been set aside as open space
sequester carbon, including Telluride’s Valley Floor.

• Land Trusts throughout the region have grown, preserving land and
preventing development through conservation easements.

• SMC established and has maintained a Baseline Soil Health Study since
2016, with a plot program study based on 25’x50’ plots of land.

• SMC planted the Pollinator Garden at the County's Down Valley park in
2017 and continues with plantings and management of this 7500' garden
each year.

• A Rare Plant Study was completed by SMC in 2010.

Payment for Ecosystem Services 
San Miguel County is piloting a soil health Payment-for-Ecosystem-Services (PES) Program to develop a protocol to help farmers and ranchers
improve their soil and increase the water holding capacity. Soil scientists across the world are studying the effects of increasing soil organic matter
and encouraging healthy soil microbes in order to produce healthier and better yields of grass and/or crops for years to come. Increasing the soil's
water holding capacity may help ease the effects of droughts as the soil acts more like a sponge, holding onto more of the water that falls. Balanced
and healthy microbial activity can increase plant growth and maintain a soil environment which may decrease the opportunity for invasive plants to
get established. The pilot program will also explore the levels of carbon that can be sequestered within our local soils. Ideally, this will develop into a
way for farmers and ranchers to get paid for ecosystem services centered on soil health. Funding for the program falls under the County's Open
Space Commission and includes funding for forest health initiatives, a fen wetland study, and community education.

https://valleyfloor.org/
https://www.sanmiguelcountyco.gov/430/Payment-for-Ecosystem-Services


Land Use Recommendations 

60

Sector: Land Use

OBJECTIVE 1: Increase the GHG sequestration and water retention capacity of land in the region

OBJECTIVE 2: Increase yield and health of crops and livestock through use of regenerative agricultural and ranching practices

OBJECTIVE 3: Increase GHG sequestration capacity of trees and plant life in the region
*Objectives apply to all actions

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY



Sneffels Energy Board:

61

Acknowledgments

Acknowledgments

The San Miguel and Ouray
County Regional Climate
Action Plan was prepared by
EcoAction Partners with
extensive input from the
Sneffels Energy Board. It
would not be possible without
the expertise, time, and
dedication of this Advisory
Committee. Many other
stakeholders representing all
sectors provided expertise
and data to support the
development of this CAP and
GHG Inventory analysis. We
would like to express our
thanks to each of them.

Other Contributing Stakeholders:

EcoAction Partners Preparer Contact Information:



62

Appendix

Additional supporting materials can be found on 
the CAP supporting documents webpage 

http://ecoactionpartners.org/CAP/documents


63

San Miguel County

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY

Appendix 1

Appendix 1: Jurisdiction Specific Action 
List 
The actions included in this appendix offer additional
municipal/jurisdiction specific actions selected to support
accomplishment of our regional objectives. We offer this
information to illuminate potential actions for each
municipality within our region, as actions for some may be
achievements for others (i.e., water and/or energy metering).

We invite additional and more specific actions to be added to
this section during the community outreach and engagement
phase of plan development.



64

Town of Telluride

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY

Appendix 1



65

Town of Ridgway

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY

Appendix 1



66

Town of Mountain Village

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY

Appendix 1



67

City of Ouray

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY

Appendix 1



68

Town of Norwood

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY

Appendix 1



69

Town of Ophir

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY

Appendix 1



70

Ouray County

GHG Potential 1-4 Promotes Equity Economic Sustainability Environmental Quality Public Health & Safety Builds Resilience

KEY

Appendix 1



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #7 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   July 7, 2022 
Agenda Topic: Resolution No. 22-07 supporting the Multimodal Transportation and 

Mitigation Options Fund Grant Application and Match Commitment for the 
Creation of a Regional Transportation Service between the City of 
Montrose, Town of Ridgway and City of Ouray 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

ACTION BEFORE COUNCIL: 
Council is asked to review and consider adopting Resolution No. 22-07 supporting the Multimodal 
Transportation and Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF) Grant Application and Match Commitment for 
the Creation of a Regional Transportation Service between the City of Montrose, Town of Ridgway 
and City of Ouray. Resolution No. 22-07 is appended to this memo as Attachment 1.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Ouray has assembled a grant application to the Colorado Department of Transportation’s 
MMOF Program requesting funding to create a regional transportation service between the City of 
Montrose, the Town of Ridgway and the City of Ouray. The total estimated cost of the project over 
a three-year period is $710,788. The amount being request of the MMOF Program is $533,091 with 
a 25% match rate pulled together by the Town of Ridgway, City of Ouray and Ouray County. That 
puts the needed contribution from the Town, City and County at $59,232 over three years. The 
estimated contribution from each entity is $28,000 in year one and $15,616 in years two and three.  
 
All Points Transit has been identified as being able to provide this service based on a contract at a 
cost of $5.00/round trip for ridership. All Points Transit has also agreed to be the program manager 
and fiscal agent for this grant. Based on the survey data, the service needs to run 7 days per week 
with multiple trips between the municipalities each day. To make this a reality and assist with 
alleviating the workforce issues in Ouray County, a budget has been put together with All Points 
Transit and through a partnership between the Town, City and County. The cost estimate, project 
implementation schedule, and more info about the needs and benefits of the proposed project can 
be found in Attachment 2. The completed application form can be found in Attachment 3. The 
adopted resolutions from the City of Ouray and Ouray County can be found in Attachments 4 and 5, 
respectively.  
 
TOWN OF RIDGWAY WORKFORCE TRANSPORATION SURVEY RESULTS 
On July 1st, the Town created and issued a survey similar to the one that the City of Ouray issued in 
May 2022 to help determine the need for workforce transportation. As of July 8th at 4:30 p.m., the 
Town had received 43 responses. Of the responders, 81.4% stated their company/business would 
benefit from having a public transit option for their employees and customers. 74.4% of respondents 
indicated that a public transportation option between Ridgway and Montrose or Ridgway and Ouray 
would expand their options to hire employees and help alleviate staffing issues. 51.2% of 



 

 

respondents stated a public transit option would increase the hours and days they are able to serve 
customers.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: 
“I move to adopt Resolution No. 22-07 supporting the MMOF grant application and match 
commitment for the creation of a regional transportation service between the City of Montrose, 
Town of Ridgway and City of Ouray.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – Resolution No. 22-07 
Attachment 2 – Ouray County Workforce Transportation Project 
Attachment 3 – Local MMOF Project Application 
Attachment 4 – City of Ouray MMOF Resolution 
Attachment 5 – Ouray County MMOF Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 22-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

RIDGWAY, COLORADO, SUPPORTING THE MULTIMODAL 

TRANSPORATION AND MITIGATION OPTIONS FUND GRANT 

APPLICATION AND MATCH COMMITMENT FOR THE 

CREATION OF A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SERVICE 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF MONTROSE, TOWN OF RIDGWAY, 

AND CITY OF OURAY 

WHEREAS, the Town of Ridgway, Colorado (the “Town”) is a home rule municipality 

and political subdivision of the State of Colorado organized and existing under a home rule 

charter pursuant to Article XX of the Constitution of the State; and 

WHEREAS, the Multimodal Transportation & Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF) was 

created within the State Treasury under Colorado Senate Bill 2018-001 and amended under 

Colorado Senate Bill 2021-260 to provide the state program with steady, annual funding for 

multimodal transportation projects; and, 

WHEREAS, the Colorado Department of Transportation is seeking grant applications 

for multimodal projects from across the state of Colorado; and, 

WHEREAS, Ouray County has a 25% grant match requirement per the Transportation 

Commission Resolution 2021-12-10, adopted December 16, 2021; and, 

WHEREAS, Ouray County has struggled for more than a decade with obtaining the 

necessary workforce to support our businesses, government entities, and the local economy in 

general and a transportation option between the City of Montrose, Town of Ridgway, and City of 

Ouray is expected to greatly assist meeting the workforce needs; and, 

WHEREAS, transportation between the City of Montrose, Town of Ridgway, and City 

of Ouray was identified in the Gunnison Valley TPR Project List for the Gunnison Valley 2045 

Regional Transportation Plant through project # 1130 PGV7018 and also mentioned in the 

Region 10 Region Implementation Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, to create a successful regional transportation system in Ouray County, All 

Points Transit has been identified as being able to provide this service and has agreed to be the 

grant program manager and fiscal agent, if awarded; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town of Ridgway is committed to this project and agrees to split the 

25% grant match requirement over the next three years with Ouray County and City of Ouray, if 

the MMOF grant application is awarded. 

ATTACHMENT 1



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL 

OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO THAT: 

Additional regional transportation is recognized as a need to assist our citizens, businesses and 

government entities and the Town fully supports the MMOF Grant Application and agrees to 

provide their share of the 25% match requirement which is estimated at $28,000 during year one 

and $15,616 for year two and three of the grant project. This resolution shall not be construed to 

constitute a debt of the Town beyond any current fiscal year and shall be subject to the 

availability of an annual appropriation thereafter by the Town.  

ADOPTED this 13th day of July 2022. 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO 

___________________________ 

John Clark, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

Pam Kraft, Town Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 1



Ouray County Workforce Transportation Project 

Attachment A ‐ Description, Needs & Benefits of Proposed Project: 

Ouray County has struggled for more than a decade with obtaining the necessary workforce to support 

our businesses, government entities and the local economy in general.  The lack of workforce has been 

exacerbated by the increase of tourism over the past three years and the spike in property values that 

has decreased the amount of available long‐term affordable rental housing.  The Ouray County tourist‐

based economy has also dramatically changed as the area has become a destination throughout the 

year and not just during the summer months.   

Due to these workforce shortages, restaurants, the municipal pool and retail establishments have had to 

shorten their hours of operation and remain closed on select days.  This has caused issues throughout 

the county since these establishments are needed to meet the demand of the visitors.  While the 

municipalities are working on the creation of additional housing options to assist with the workforce 

issues, it has become apparent public transportation is necessary to pull employees from a regional area 

to meet the immediate needs.  The creation of a regular transportation service between the City of 

Montrose and the City of Ouray, with a stop in Ridgway, can accomplish this need.  To make this a 

reality, funding support is necessary.   

This project was identified in the Gunnison Valley TPR Project List for the Gunnison Valley 2045 Regional 

Transportation Plant through project # 1130 PGV7018 and also mentioned in the Region 10 Region 

Implementation Plan.  This transportation need was identified because there is no public transit that 

connects Montrose to the City of Ouray.  Ouray is another 11 miles from the Bustang Outrider stop in 

Ridgway and this new transportation option through this grant will be timed to meet the Bustang to 

ensure a more readily available regional transportation system. 

A survey of Ouray businesses was completed in May of 2022 to help determine the need for workforce 

transportation.  To assist in meeting this grant deadline, the survey was only opened for five days and 

twenty‐four responders provided submissions.  Of the responders, 87.5% stated their company/business 

would benefit from having a public transit option for their employees and customers.  In addition, 62.5% 

stated a public transit option would increase the hours and days they are able to serve customers.  One 

responder even stated they would be able to reopen a currently closed business.  79.2% also responded 

that public transportation between the City of Ouray and City of Montrose would expand their options 

to hire employees and help alleviate staffing issues.   

In 2017/2018, Ouray County, through the Ouray Transit Advisory Council (OTAC), also conducted a 

survey that focused on employee analysis and had seventy (70) responses.  This survey identified the 

blocks of time each day needed to create a successful regional transportation option and provided 

information on how much people are willing to pay for the service.  This information will be utilized for 

this project to ensure rates and times are set accordingly. Within the results, 93% stated they would 

consider using a transportation service between Montrose and Ouray, with a stop in Ridgway, at least 2‐

3 times per week.  This further supports our need for a transportation service and will assist our 

communities by reducing parking requirements and pollution as 91% of the responders stated they drive 

their personal vehicles alone to work at least one day per week. 

ATTACHMENT 2



To create a successful regional transportation system between the City of Montrose and the City of 

Ouray, All Points Transit has been identified as being able to provide this service based on a contract at a 

cost of $5.00/round trip for ridership.  All Points Transit has also agreed to be the program manager and 

fiscal agent for this grant.  Based on the survey data, the service needs to run 7‐days per week with 

multiple trips between the municipalities each day.  To make this a reality and assist with alleviating the 

workforce issues in Ouray County, the attached budget has been put together with All Points Transit and 

through a partnership between the City of Ouray, Town of Ridgway and Ouray County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2



Ouray County Workforce Transportation Project 

Attachment B ‐ Cost Estimate and Project Implementation Schedule: 

The following budget is based on a three (3) year contract with All Points Transit.  This service 

will also meet the schedule of the Bustang to ensure transfers can be completed in Ridgway.  

While this proposal focuses on workforce transportation, the service will be open to all public 

users.  The budget is based on five (5) round trips during the summer and three (3) round trips 

in the winter (6 months/6 months). 

Operation Costs: 

Annual Operations (Year One):     $215,000  Assumes roughly 3,580 service hours; Roughly 6‐7 

service hours / day in winter and 12‐14 service hours / 

day in summer, averaging 10.5 / day throughout the 

year   

Annual Operations (Year Two):     $225,750  5% Cost Increase due to Personnel and Fuel 

Annual Operations (Year Three):  $237,038  5% Cost Increase due to Personnel and Fuel 

 

Marketing ($10,000/Year):           $30,000  Design / Print rack cards. Add info to web sites. Social 

  Media campaign. 

Total Operations (Three Years of Service): $707,788 

 

Capital Costs (One‐Time): 

ADA Accessible Van:   $84,000  MATCH 

Vehicle Vinyl Wrap:  $4,500 

Signage at Stops:  $4,500 

Total Capital Costs:   $93,000 

 

Revenue: 

Fares (Year One):  $25,000  Fares (Averaging 6 passengers per service hour at $5 round‐trip) 

Fares (Year Two):  $30,000  20% Increase in transportation users over year one 

Fares (Year Three):  $35,000  16.6% Increase in transportation wsers over year two 

Total Revenue:     $90,000 

 

ATTACHMENT 2



Grant Funding Request: 

Operations: $707,788 ‐ $90,000 (Revenue) = $617,788 

Capital (Grant): $93,000 ‐ $84,000 Vehicle Match = $9,000 

Capital (Match): $84,000  

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $710,788  

Match (25%): $177,697 ($59,232 from each City of Ouray, Town of Ridgway, and Ouray County): 

Year 1 ‐ $84,000 ($28,000 each) 

Year 2 ‐ $46,848.50 ($15,616 each) 

Year 3 ‐ $46,848.50 ($15,616 each) 

Grant Funding Requested: $533,091.00  

 

Project Implementation Schedule: 

Upon award of funding, the project would take approximately six to eight months to fully implement. 

Our goal is for the service to begin in April of 2023. 

ATTACHMENT 2



LOCAL MMOF PROJECT APPLICATION ‐ 2022 

Planning Region: 

Complete and submit this form‐fillable application ELECTRONICALLY ONLY!  Do NOT submit any printed, scanned or converted files! 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

1. ELIGIBLE APPLICANT AGENCY TYPE – indicate ONE

Municipality   County   Transit Agency  School Dist.   Other  

2. AGENCY NAME 3. ADDITIONAL CO-SPONSORS

4. CONTACT PERSON TITLE PHONE 

5. AGENCY MAILING ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

6. PROJECT NAME

7. PROJECT LOCATION
(route, address, service area, etc.)

8. PROJECT PHYSICAL LIMITS (mileposts, intersecting
roadways, boundaries, etc., if applicable)

9. COUNTY(ies) 10. MUNICIPALITY(ies) 11. REQUIRED MATCH RATE:

50% (default)   25%      0% 

11a. MATCH RATE EXPLANATION - Provide a brief description of your agency service area to justify the match rate 
above (not required of Counties or Municipalities) 

12. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT SCOPE (i.e., what work will be done; do NOT include why it’ll be done)

ELIGIBILITY 

13. PROJECT ELEMENTS – check all that apply

PEDESTRIAN & BICYCLE 

Bicycle & pedestrian facilities - construction 
Bicycle & pedestrian facilities - design 
Projects providing safe, non-motorized routes for 
school-aged children 
Planning or Study for non-motorized transportation 

TRANSIT (CDOT-DTR consultation required) 
NEW Transit Service (also submit Attachment J) 
EXISTING Transit Service (Operating Costs) 
Transit planning, feasibility, or other study 
Transit Revenue Service Vehicle Replacement 
Transit Revenue Service Vehicle Expansion 
Transit Non-Revenue Service Vehicle 
Transit Facility Design 
Transit Facility Construction 
Transit Equipment Purchase 



OTHER 
Transportation Demand Management Project 
Multimodal Mobility Technology 
Multimodal Transportation Study 
Greenhouse Gas Mitigation - reduces VMT or increases multimodal use 
Transportation/Travel Modeling 

PLAN INTEGRATION 

14. Is your project defined in a regional plan? YES NO 
If yes, please identify the plan: 

15. Is your project defined in a local plan? YES NO 
If yes, please identify the plan: 

Note: Projects are not required to be identified specifically in a 10-Year Plan, Regional Plan or Statewide Plan 
FUNDING 

PROJECT FUNDS - provide all related funding sources and amounts!! TYPE AMOUNT ($) 

16. MMOF FUNDS REQUESTED:
(select preference for STATE, FEDERAL or EITHER type of funding)

17. OTHER FUNDING SOURCE(S) - also indicate TYPE of funding source

17a. 

17b. 

17c. 

17d. 

17e. 

18. TOTAL PROJECT COST*

*Transit Service Expansion projects: Include total combined funds for all project components above and provide
Attachment J below detailing the separate funding plans for long-term capital, operating and/or planning components.

SUPPLEMENTAL ATTACHMENTS REQUIRED - please label attachments accordingly 

19. FOR ALL PROJECTS:
Attachment A – Description, Needs & Benefits of proposed project
Attachment B – Cost estimate and project implementation schedule
Attachment C – Resolutions of local financial support and letters of approval
Attachment D – Evidence of project eligibility (if necessary or requested)

INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS: 
Attachment E – Maps, plans and photographs 
Attachment F – Environmental Review 
Attachment G – Proposed maintenance plans, agreements, covenants 
Attachment H – Right-of-way or legal property description 

TRANSIT: 
Attachment J - Transit Service Expansion funding plan (Required for all NEW transit service projects) 
Attachment K - Transit Facility Equity Analysis (Required of all FTA-funded agencies for all FACILITY projects) 

SIGNATURE 

20. AUTHORIZED AGENCY REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE TITLE 

DATE 



RESOTUTTON NO. 12, SERTES 2022

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE MUTTIMODAL TRANSPORATION AND
MTTTGATTON OPTTONS FUND (MMOF) GRANT AppUCATtON AND MATCH
COMMITTEMENT FOR THE CREATION OF A REGIONAT TRANSPORTATION

SERVICE BETWEEN THE CtTy OF MONTROSE, TOWN OF R|DGWAY, AND
CIW OF OURAY

WHEREAS, the MultimodalTransportation & Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF) was
created within the State Treasury under Colorado Senate Bill 2018-001and amended under
Colorado Senate Bill2O2L-260 to provide the state program with steady, annual funding for
multimodal transportation projects; and,

WHEREAS, the Colorado Department of Transportation is seeking grant applications for
multimodal projects from across the state of Colorado; and,

WHEREAS, Ouray County has a 25% grant match requirement per the Transportation
Com m ission Resolution 2O2L-L2-L0, adopted Decem be r L6, 2O2L; and,

WHEREAS, Ouray County has struggled for more than a decade with obtaining the
necessary workforce to support our businesses, government entities, and the local economy in
general and a transportation option between the City of Montrose, Town of Ridgway, and City
of Ouray is believed to greatly assist meeting the workforce needs; and,

WHEREAS, transportation between the City of Montrose, Town of Ridgway, and City of
Ouray was identified in the Gunnison Valley TPR Project List for the Gunnison Valley 2045
Regional Transportation Plant through project # 1130 PGV7018 and also mentioned in the
Region 10 Region lmplementation Plan; and,

WHEREAS, to create a successful regional transportation system in Ouray County, All
Points Transit has been identified as being able to provide this service and has agreed to be the
grant program manager and fiscal agent, if awarded; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Ouray is committed to this project and agrees to split the 25%
grant match requirement over the next three years with Ouray County and Town of Ridgway, if
the MMOF grant application is awarded; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CIW COUNCIT OF THE CIW OF

ouRAY, COTORADO THAT:

Additional regional transportation is recognized as a need to assist our citizens, businesses and
government entities and the City fully supports the MMOF Grant Application and agrees to

ATTACHMENT 4



provide their share of the 25Yo match requirement which is estimated at 528,000 during year
one and 515,616 for year two and three of the grant project.

ADOPTED this 5th day of July, 2O22,by the Ouray City Council.

crw oF ou , COLORADO

Ethan Funk, Mayor
ATTEST:

Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk

ATTACHMENT 4



RESOLUTION No. 2022-028 

232529 
Page 1 of 1 I llllll llllllllll l~ll lllll llllllll~ 1111111 Ill~ 
Michelle Nauer, Clerk & Recorder 

Ouray County, CO 

07-06-2022 11 :18AM Recording Fee $0.00 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF OURAY COUNTY, COLORADO 

SUPPORTING THE MUTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION AND MITIGATION OPTIONS FUND (MMOF) GRANT 
APPLICATION AND MATCH COMMITMENT FOR THE CREATION OF A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 

SERVICE BETWEEN THE CITY OF MONTROSE, TOWN OF RIDGWAY, AND CITY OF OURAY 

WHEREAS, the Multimodal Transportation & Mitigation Options Fund (MMOF) was created within the 
State Treasury under Colorado Senate Bill 2018-001 and amended under Colorado Senate Bill 2021-260 to 
provide the state program with steady, annual funding for multimodal transportation projects: and, 

WHEREAS, the Colorado Department of Transportation is seeking grant applications for multimodal 
projects from across the state of Colorado: and, 

WHEREAS, Ouray County has a 25% grant match requirement per the Transportation Commission 
Resolution 2021-12-10, adopted December 16, 2021; and, 

WHEREAS, Ouray County has struggled for more than a decade with obtaining the necessary workforce 
to support our businesses, government entities, and the local economy in general and a transportation option 
between the City of Montrose, Town of Ridgway, and City of Ouray is believed to greatly assist meeting the 
workforce needs; and, 

WHEREAS, transportation between the City of Montrose, Town of Ridgway, and City of Ouray was 
identified in the Gunnison Valley TPR Project List for the Gunnison Valley 2045 Regional Transportation Plant 
through project# 1130 PGV7018 and also mentioned in the Region 10 Region Implementation Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, to create a successful regional transportation system in Ouray County, All Points Transit has 
been identified as being able to provide this service and has agreed to be the grant program manager and fiscal 
agent, if awarded; and, 

WHEREAS, the County of Ouray is committed to this project and agrees to split the 25% grant match 
requirement over the next three years with Ouray County and Town of Ridgway, if the MMOF grant application is 
awarded. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners finds that additional regional 
transportation is recognized as a need to assist our citizens, businesses and government entities and the County 
fully supports the MMOF Grant Application and agrees to provide their share of the 25% match requirement which 
is estimated at $28,000 during year one and $15,616 for year two and three of the grant project. 

-fu i Adopted this VJ - day otAv .,,- , 2022. , 
Voting for: U>\1\A.-vv•,5.s'\.f:,V\.{,~6 ~\e-t\---t 
Voting against: )...)O'IAk 

A 13.,~ , .. n·. Co V\,I\A,•vH '€"0°', OV\,( / ,-J \e. (.. e 

Attest: 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF OURAY COUNTY, COLORADO 

Ben Tisdel, Commissioner 

Resollllion 2022-028 • Page I of I 

ATTACHMENT 5



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   July 7, 2022 
Agenda Topic: Discussion and direction regarding HB22-1117 Use of Local Lodging Taxes 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

SUMMARY: 
Earlier this year, Governor Polis signed HB22-1117 concerning the use of revenue from a local tax 
on lodging. The bill will now allow some level of county lodging taxes to be used to help create 
affordable housing funds. The bill is specific to counties and marketing districts and allows for 
expenditures, with voter approval, on items such as housing, childcare and infrastructure 
improvements if the project enhances the visitor and overall community experience. While specific 
to counties and marketing districts, the initiative has spurred discussion among staff about the 
Town’s Lodging Tax.  
 
Pursuant to the Town Charter, the Town has full authority and power to enact taxes and tax 
increases, subject to approval of the voters pursuant to Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado 
Constitution. In 1992, the Town’s first Lodging Tax of $1 per night per occupied room was adopted. 
In 2002, Ridgway voters approved changing the Lodging Tax to $2 per night with half the revenues 
for tourism promotion and the other half for mitigating the effects of tourism and growth. In 
November 2015, the Ridgway electorate approved a ballot question changing the Town’s Lodging 
Tax rate from $2 per room per night to 3.5 percent per room per night. In addition, voters agreed 
that “up to 70% of the proceeds of the Lodging Tax be used for tourism promotion and economic 
development and the remainder be used for expenses attributable to tourism and growth.” 
 
Council is asked to discuss the idea of submitting a ballot question to the electorate modifying how 
the Lodging Tax proceeds are earmarked. The 2022 Strategic Plan contains a strategy that states: 
“Continue efforts on workforce housing, including evaluating and recommending mechanisms or 
strategies for a dedicated revenue source for affordable housing.” Staff feels modifying how the 
Lodging Tax proceeds are earmarked may be a good way to create a dedicated revenue source to 
assist affordable housing efforts. For example, 70% of the proceeds could remain going toward 
tourism promotion and economic development while the remainder could be used to help create 
affordable housing funds. 
 
To submit a ballot question to hold a special municipal election as a coordinated election with Ouray 
County in November, the Town would need to submit a notice of intent to the Ouray County Clerk 
& Recorder’s Office this month. A resolution setting the ballot title and content for the ballot issue 
could be considered by Council and issued to Ouray County during the month of August.  
 
 

https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/2022a_1117_signed.pdf


 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #10 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   July 7, 2022 
Agenda Topic: Confirmation or amendment of Emergency Restrictions, promulgated by 

the Town Manager, on burning and fires within the Town of Ridgway 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

SUMMARY: 
On June 15th, the Town of Ridgway followed the lead of Ouray County and other agencies in our 
region in implementing “Stage 1” fire restrictions. The Town Manager formally promulgated 
emergency restrictions on burning and fires within the Town via “Finding of the Town Manager of 
the Town of Ridgway – Enacting a Town Wide Fire Ban”, which is appended to this memo.  
 
On June 30th, the Town joined the large majority of jurisdictions in our region in transitioning out of 
fire restrictions. The rescission of fire restrictions is now subject to “confirmation or amendment by 
the Town Council”, as described in Section 12-2-1(C) of the Ridgway Municipal Code.   
 
Fire managers based their decision of coming out of fire restrictions on specific moisture 
measurements in vegetation and other risk factors such as predicted weather and amount of current 
fire activity.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: 
“I move to confirm the emergency restrictions on burning and fires within the Town of Ridgway, as 
well as the rescission of emergency restrictions on burning and fires within the Town of Ridgway.” 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
Finding of the Town Manager of the Town of Ridgway – Enacting a Town Wide Fire Ban 
 
 



 

 

 

FINDING OF THE TOWN MANAGER OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY - 

ENACTING A TOWN WIDE FIRE BAN 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ridgway Municipal Code (RMC) Section 12-2-1(C), in times of 

significant drought, the Town Manager may promulgate emergency restrictions on burning and 

fires within the Town of Ridgway; and  

 

 WHEREAS, on June 15, 2022, Ouray County imposed Stage 1 fire restrictions, which 

prohibits burning and fire in a manner similar to that contemplated herein, and other surrounding 

counties and federal agencies have also imposed similar and more restrictive restrictions on 

public lands; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Manager finds that the conditions are extreme and unpredictable, 

making individual actions by Council on decisions related to fire restrictions and the uses and 

operation of the Town property impractical; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted under RMC Section 12-2-1(c), the Town 

Manager of the Town of Ridgway finds that it is a time of significant drought and the fire danger 

and fire risk are high.  

 NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority granted to the Ridgway Town Manager, 

the following activities are banned within the Town of Ridgway: 

 

• Building, maintaining, attending or using a campfire except in designated and signed 

campgrounds or developed recreation sites with provided fire grates 

 

• Open burning of any kind including burning of trash or debris, burning of ditches, open 

charcoal or wood fires 

 

• Fireworks or the use of explosives;  

 

• Smoking on public property, except in an enclosed vehicle or building;  

 

• Disposal of any cigarette anywhere outdoors;  

 

• Operating any chainsaw, except with a fire extinguisher and shovel kept within 

immediate reach; 

 

• Welding or use of torch with open flame, unless inside an enclosed structure and as an 

allowable use in the zoning district. 

 

• Other activities determined to be of high risk in creating a wildfire and potential for loss 

of life or significant damage to personal property. 

 



 

 

These restrictions shall remain in effect, unless or until modified or revoked by further order of 

the Town Council. 

 

EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY THIS 15th day of June, 2022.  

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Preston Neill, Town Manager 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #11 
 



 

 

June 21, 2022 
 
 
Colorado Office of Economic Development & International Trade 
Colorado Outdoor Recreation Industry Office 
1600 Broadway, Ste. 2500 
Denver, CO 802002 
 
 
RE: Letter of Support for Ouray Ice Park’s Funding Request 
 
 
Colorado Outdoor Recreation Industry Office,  
 
On behalf of the Ridgway Town Council, I am writing to express support for the City of Ouray and 
The Ouray Ice Park Inc., who manages the Ouray Ice Park for the City, as they have been working 
to identify an independent source of water as well as build the necessary infrastructure to supply 
the Ouray Ice Park. 
 
The Ice Park has been in existence for many years, originally simply using the natural seasonal 
water flows in the Uncompahgre River gorge, along with some overflow from the City's municipal 
water system. As the Ice Park grew over the years, the proximity to the City's water system made 
use of City water an obvious and cost-effective approach to slowly grow the Ice Park’s climbable 
terrain. 
 
As is true for most of the southwest, the City of Ouray is now faced with a long-term drought 
which has seriously impacted their water production and it is expected to do so for the 
foreseeable future. The City’s water infrastructure is built around a single, high-quality spring. If 
that spring‘s output is reduced due to the drought, the City will obviously be faced with a dire 
situation which could reduce or eliminate their ability to supply water to the Ice Park. 
 
In fact, the City has already needed to restrict the amount of water used within the Ice Park at 
times, to ensure there is an adequate water supply for the city’s citizens and businesses. Ironically, 
this is at least partly due to the success of the Ice Park, which has noticeably increased the number 
of wintertime visitors in our region. Subsequently, this results in increased municipal water usage 
during the winter months when the Ice Park needs the water and the City’s spring does not 
produce as much water as other times of the year. 
 
Locating an additional water source and building adequate infrastructure for delivery to supply 
the Ice Park will 1) protect the Ice Park from future municipal water restrictions, 2) allow for 
continued growth of the Ice Park’s terrain, and 3) give the City additional headroom in their water 
capacity. 
 



 

 

The Town of Ridgway and the City of Ouray have a long history of collaboration and cooperation 
on a number of fronts. As we all know, economic development impacts are not limited to any 
given municipality; they’re truly regional. The success of the Ouray Ice Park has given the entire 
county an economic shot in the arm at a time of year when we’ve historically been very quiet and 
our businesses have struggled. Therefore, we urge you to support the Ouray Ice Park’s funding 
request to support their “Our Water Our Future” capital campaign and we thank you for your 
consideration.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
John I. Clark 
Mayor 
On behalf of the Ridgway Town Council 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #12 
 



 

 

July 13, 2022 
 
 
Senator Michael Bennet 
261 Russell Senate Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20510 
 
 
Dear Senator Bennet, 
 
We are writing you regarding the Gunnison Outdoor Resources Protection (GORP) Act, and our 
hope is that some very important lands be added to the proposal.  We have followed the 
discussions around GORP for some time and believe that the process has been transparent and 
collaborative, in no small part due to your and your staff’s involvement.  The current GORP 
proposal is very much a community-based effort. 
 
There are several possible additions to the existing Uncompahgre Wilderness that are very 
familiar to Ridgway residents and that we believe are worthy additions to the proposal. These are 
the proposed Turret Ridge, Little Cimarron, and Failes Creek/Soldier Creek additions, totaling near 
15,000 acres of some of the most spectacular landforms in the region.  Some of these can be seen 
from Highway 550 just north of Ridgway, and are a stunning sight.  Their ruggedness and lack of 
trails ensures solitude for visitors, and they provide important migration areas for elk moving 
between the higher San Juan Mountains to wintering grounds near Blue Mesa Reservoir, as well 
as habitat for wildlife including lynx and moose. 
 
Although the lands lie primarily in Gunnison County, the main access is from Ridgway, and our 
residents routinely visit these areas. A number of local residents have made their desire for 
protection of these areas known to us. We request that, with the support of Gunnison County, 
the proposed Uncompahgre additions be included in the final GORP package.  We are glad to help 
in any way and wish to thank you again for your work in protecting the many diverse and 
important lands in the region. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
John I. Clark 
Mayor 
On behalf of the Ridgway Town Council 
 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #13 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #14 
 



2023 Fiscal Year Budget Preparation Schedule 
 

 

 

Date Description Responsible Parties 

September 13 – 

September 29, 2022 

Meetings with Town staff: 

• Strategic Plan 

• Town-wide initiatives 

• Levels of service 

• Fees  

• Goals and objectives  

• Personnel requests 

• Capital Outlay requests 

• Line-item justifications 

Preston, Pam 

October 12, 2022 
Draft 2023 Fiscal Year Budget 

Submitted to Council 
Preston, Pam 

October 22, 2022 

9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. 

Budget Retreat: 

• Introduction of Draft 2023 

Fiscal Year Budget 

• Introduction of Draft 2023 

Strategic Plan 

Outcomes: 

• Council direction for revisions 

• Council direction for Capital 

Improvement Projects 

• Council direction for revenue 

projections 

• Council requests for additional 

information, analysis or 

options 

Council, Preston, Pam 

November 9, 2022 

Council Budget Hearing: 

• Staff Presentation of 2023 

Fiscal Year Proposed Budget 

• Presentation of 2023 Strategic 

Plan 

• Follow-up on any Council 

directions or requests 

• Council discussion and public 

comment 

Council, Preston, Pam 

November 17, 2022 

Council Budget Workshop: 

• Overview of 2023 Fiscal Year 

Proposed Budget 

• Follow-up on any Council 

directions or requests 

• Council discussion and public 

comment 

Council, Preston, Pam 

December 14, 2022 

Council Budget Hearing: 

• Adoption of 2023 Fiscal Year 

Budget, including Capital 

Projects Plan and 2023 

Strategic Plan 

• Approval of Resolution 

Certifying Mill Levy 

Council, Preston, Pam 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #15 
 


	00 July 13 tc agenda
	01 Consent Agenda
	02 June 8 tc min
	03 Register of Demands
	04 Agenda Item 6
	05 Regional Climate Action Plan Presentation
	1. EAP Regional Climate Action Plan Work Session memo
	2. EAP_Regional Cap.sm

	06 Agenda Item 7
	07 Agenda Item 8
	08 Resolution No. 22-07 MMOF Grant Application and Grant Commitment
	1. Memo
	2. Attachment 1 - Resolution No. 22-07
	3. Attachment 2 - Ouray County Workforce Transportation Project
	4. Attachment 3 - City of Ouray - Local MMOF Project Application form
	5. Attachment 4 - City of Ouray - MMOF Resolution
	6. Attachment 5 - Ouray County - MMOF Resolution

	09 Agenda Item 9
	10 Lodging Tax Discussion
	11 Agenda Item 10
	12 Fire Restrictions
	1. Memo
	2. Town Wide Fire Ban - Stage 1 Restrictions - June 14, 2022 - signed

	13 Agenda Item 11
	14 Ice Park Letter of Support 2022 06 21.pdf
	15 Agenda Item 12
	16 Letter of Support for Additions to GORP Act
	17 Agenda Item 13
	18 Agenda Item 14
	19 2023 Fiscal Year Budget Preparation Schedule
	20 Agenda Item 15

	Other agency type: 
	Agency Name: City of Ouray, Colorado
	Additional Co-sponsors: Ouray County & Town of Ridgway              
	Contact: Silas Clarke
	Contact Title: City Administrator
	Phone: 970-325-7060
	Mailing Address: P.O. Box 468
	City: Ouray
	State: CO
	Zip: 81427
	Project Name: Ouray County Workforce Transportation Project
	Project Location: Montrose; Ridgway; Ouray
	Physical Limits: Transportation between three municipalities 
	COUNTYies: Ouray to Montrose Counties
	MUNICIPALITYies: Montrose; Ridgway; Ouray
	Match Rate Explanation: N/A - Municipality Application
	Project Scope: Creation of a public vehicle transportation system between Montrose, Ridgway and Ouray.
	Agency type: Muni
	Match Rate: 25%
	Bike/Ped construction: Off
	Bike/Ped Design: Off
	Bike/Ped SRTS: Off
	Bike/Ped Planning: Off
	Transit New Service: New Service
	Transit Operations: Off
	Transit Planning: Off
	Transit Rev Veh Replacement: Off
	Transit Rev Veh Expansion: Off
	Transit Service Vehicle: Off
	Transit Facility Design: Off
	Transit Facility Construction: Off
	Transit Equipment: Off
	Planning Region: [Southwest]
	Regional Plan Name: Limit information for Ouray County was included in Bustang Plan
	MMOF funds requested: 533091
	Other Funds a: 59233
	Other Funds b: 59232
	Other Funds c: 59232
	Other Funds d: 
	Other Funds e: 
	Total Project Cost: 710788
	Signator title: City Administrator
	Date: 7.1.2022
	Attachment A: A
	TDM Project: Off
	MM Technology: Off
	MM Study: Off
	GHG Mitigation: Off
	Modeling: Off
	Local Plan Name: City Community Plan;Ouray Transit Advisory Council; GV TPR 2045
	Regional Plan: Yes
	Local Plan: Yes
	MMOF Funds Type Requested: [EITHER]
	Other Funds Type a: [LOCAL]
	Other Funds Type b: [LOCAL]
	Other Funds Type c: [LOCAL]
	Other Funds Type d: [LOCAL]
	Other Funds Type e: [LOCAL]
	Other Funds Source a: City of Ouray
	Other Funds Source b: Ouray County
	Other Funds Source c: Town of Ridgway
	Other Funds Source d: 
	Other Funds Source e: 
	Attachment B: B
	Attachment C: Off
	Attachment D: Off
	Attachment E: Off
	Attachment F: Off
	Attachment G: Off
	Attachment H: Off
	Attachment J: J
	Attachment K: Off


